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On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of Matsunichi
Communication Holdings Limited (the “"Company”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st March, 2008.

RESULTS
The Group recorded a turnover of HK$4,298 million (2007:

HK$3,071 million) for the year ended 31st March, 2008,
representing an increase of 40%. The growth was mainly due
to further market diversification and rising demand for the
Group's digital consumer products, boosting the sales volume
internationally. The gross profit margin remained steady at
14% (2007: 14%).

The net profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2008 amounted to HK$687 million (2007: HK$202 million),
representing an increase of 240% over the same period last

year.

Result from development and sales of digital consumer
products increased from HK$301 million by 40% to HK$422
million for year ended 31st March, 2008. Of the two plots
of adjacent land held by the Group as at 31st March, 2008,
only 533,760 square metres out of 997,951 square metres
of planned gross floor area was classified as investment
properties and carried at fair value as at 31st March, 2008.
Thus, gain on increase in fair value of investment properties
only of HK$1,587 million was recorded in the income

statement accordingly.

Although the Group performed well in development and sales
of digital consumer products and land acquired during the
year was appreciated in value, the Group’s profit was eaten
up by the losses on derivative financial instruments of HK$549
million, share based payments expenses of HK$32 million and

provision of deferred tax of HK$426 million.
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During the year, the Group issued new rights shares (with
bonus warrants) and convertible bonds to qualifying
shareholders with aggregate net proceeds amounted to
HK$3.2 billion. Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both liability and conversion option components
were classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. According to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs) and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKAS), at the date of issue, the conversion option
components and warrants granted were recognized at
fair value. As at 31st March, 2008, the conversion option
derivative and warrants were measured at fair value with
fair value change of HK$161 million and HK$67 million
respectively recognized as losses. Share options granted to
other participants and foreign currency forward contracts
entered during the year were accounted for as derivative
financial instruments. Fair value change between inception
date and balance sheet date for share options granted to
other participants and foreign currency forward contracts
entered of HK$274 million and HK$47 million respectively
were recognized as losses. Total of the losses on these
derivative financial instruments amounted to HK$549 million.
According to HKFRSs and HKAS, share options granted to
employees of the Group during the year was expensed as
HK$32 million and deferred tax of HK$426 million was
provided for the gain on increase in fair value of investment

properties.

Recognition of the above expenses or losses in accordance
with HKFRSs and HKAS totaling of HK$1,007 million on the
financial result do not have impact on the cash flow and

operation of the normal course of business of the Group.
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As the impact on the financial result of the conversion option
derivative and warrants measured at fair value with losses
on fair value change of HK$161 million and HK$67 million
respectively, with the fair value change between inception
date and balance sheet date for share options granted to
other participants of HK$274 million recognized as losses
totaling a loss of HK$502 million on the Company, leading to
the overall financial result of the Company become loss and
unable to declare dividend for the year. However, the above
expenses or losses recognized in accordance with HKFRSs and
HKAS do not have impact on the cash flow and operation of

the normal course of business of the Company.

Basic earnings per share of the Group increased by 144% to
HK64.49 cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW

PRC property development business

The Group ventured into the property development business
in the PRC in 2007 to generate diversified income stream and
enhance earnings growth, in response to the strong appetite
for commercial and residential properties as the Chinese
economy continues its robust growth. It aims to become a

premier developer of high-end properties.

In March 2007, the Group announced the acquisition of 2
plots of adjacent land in Xiging District, Tianjin Municipal
with land plot numbers Jinxi Qinghai (Gua) 2006-078 and
2006-079 for RMB2,026 million. The deal was completed in
September 2007. The fair value of these 2 plots adjacent land
as at 31st March, 2008 was RMB4,750 million. At the same
time, the Group further announced the acquisition of another
plot of adjacent land, which is also located at Xiging District,
Tianjin Municipal with land plot number Jinxi Qinghai (Gua)
2006-077 for RMB1,419.98 million, and the acquisition was
completed in May 2008. The total land area acquired amounts
to 677,000 square metres and aggregate planned gross floor

area of around 1.6 million square metres.
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The property project kicked off in full speed after the
foundation ceremony took place in December 2007. As
the basic infrastructure is in place, town planning and
applications for approval from various government bureaus

are in progress.

The Group plans to develop a mega project with a new
central business district (CBD) and community concept on
these 3 plots of land. A 117-storey Grade-A office building
is to be located in the CBD which will be a landmark in the
city centre of Tianjin. This flagship project will be a high-
end commercial and residential complex with an aggregate
planned gross floor area of around 1.6 million square metres,
in which around 0.6 million square meters would be for
residential usage and the remaining for commercial and

cultural usage.

The residential components comprise villa, serviced
apartments and high-end residential units, while the
commercial ones include office, retail, 5-star hotel and
convention centre. The targeted clientele include multinational
corporations, senior executives stationed in Tianjin, locals
desiring high-end quality residence and local government
bureaus. It is expected the development, rental and sale will
take 5 years to complete in 3 phases. Pre-sale of phase 1 will
include villas, high-rise residential units and retail units, and
that of phase 2 will include hip-hotel also. The properties may
be held for re-sale or rental purposes depending on prevailing
market sentiment. The district is equipped with international
schools and other facilities. The Group believes that a
good mix of residential and commercial properties helps
to maximise revenue and ensure a stable, recurring rental

income.
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Given the unique economic and geographical advantages,
together with the support of government policy, the Group is
upbeat with the prospects of property development in Tianjin.
Tianjin is positioned as the economic center in the north
of China by the PRC government, and such positioning is

favourable to the city for further development.

The 3 plots of land are strategically located in Tianjin and
have high accessibility to the city centre and Beijing. It takes
around 10 to 15 minutes to reach the city centre by car, and
an exit of Line no.3 of Tianjin subway will be located close to
the site. With the opening of Beijing-Tianjin Intercity Rail in
August 2008, one can travel to and from Beijing and Tianjin
in 27 minutes by this rail. The traveling time by car has been
reduced to 1 to 1.5 hours with the opening of the second
phase of Jingjintang High-Speed Road in June 2008. A new
terminal of Tianjin Binhai International Airport was opened
in May 2008, which makes traveling to Tianjin by air more

convenient.

Tianjin's economic development is among the fastest in
the PRC. According to a recent report by an international
property consultancy firm, Tianjin's foreign direct investment
utilized has recorded a year-on-year growth of 88.1% for the
period of January to February 2008. In view of the potential
economic development of Tianjin as the next economic
powerhouse for the fast-developing China after Shenzhen
and Shanghai, more investors are expected to set up their
offices in Tianjin and more people will be visiting and working
in Tianjin. This would boost demand for quality residential

and commercial properties.
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The property market in Tianjin is booming, with a strong
demand for high-end properties. With reference to a recent
report by an international property consultancy firm, the
prime office rent, prices of luxury residential and ground
prime retail rent recorded a year-on-year growth of 2.7%,
5.7% and 2.1% respectively for the first quarter of 2008.
In addition, with reference to land transaction records filed
in Tianjin Land Exchange Centre, the selling price of a plot
of land in February 2008 in Xiging district located in the
same district as that of the Group’s plots of land was over
RMB5,100 per gross floor area per square metres, which
represents a growth of 150% comparing with the Group’s
land cost of RMB2,054 per gross floor area per square metres.

Consumer electronics business

Our brand is well-established and the business is enjoying
steady growth. Our major markets include North America
and Europe. Other regions such as Russia are making a more

significant contribution to sales as well.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Working capital and bank balances and cash
The Group’s working capital as at 31st March, 2008
amounted to HK$3,846 million, representing an increase of

approximately 186% as compared with last year.

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group had approximately
HK$2,800 million of cash on hand compared with
approximately HK$1,751 million with last year. The strong
cash position has paved the way to finance the working

capital requirements of the Group.

The current ratio of the Group improved from 1.93 times in
the previous financial year to 3.25 times this year.
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Bank and other borrowings

The total short-term bank borrowings had increased from
HK$1,193 million in last year to HK$1,292 million as at
31st March, 2008. The gearing ratio (defined as total bank
borrowings on shareholders’ funds) decreased from 66 % as
at 31st March, 2007 to 32% as at 31st March, 2008.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (RMB)
and US dollars. The Group's exposure to US dollars currency
risk is minimal as Hong Kong dollars is pegged to US dollars.
Nevertheless, as RMB becomes more volatile, the Group’s

operations and performances might thus be affected.

The Group’s borrowings are principally arranged on a floating
rate basis. The use of financial derivative instruments is
strictly controlled and solely for management of the Group’s
underlying exposures. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into

derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the Group has received overwhelming
response for its fundraising activities. The aggregate net
proceeds amounted to HK$3.2 billion through the new issues
of rights shares (with bonus warrants) and convertible bonds
to qualifying shareholders with respective amounts of HK$1.8
billion and HK$1.4 billion.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March,

2008.
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group is optimistic about the outlook
for the coming year. We are determined to be a premier
property developer by focusing its resources on the property
development business in the PRC. Riding on the robust
growth of the economy and foreign direct investment in
Tianjin and the PRC, we are positive towards the future of
the property market there and the Group is well positioned
to grasp the opportunities ahead. We aim to leverage on the
increasing purchasing power and rising living standard of
Tianjin, the third-generation economic engine, to drive the
demand for quality residential and commercial properties and
related facilities.

The Group is committed to the property development business
in the PRC and leveraging on its strong cash position. We
are eager to further expand our land bank should such
opportunities arise so as to ensure growth in our property
development business. While we aim to replicate the CBD
model of our Tianjin project in our future projects, we would
also consider other types of real estates development with
good potentials. We shall develop high-end and sizable land
for large-scale premier property projects with both commercial
and residential components. We anticipate to create demand
for residential properties by establishing commercial centres in
first- and second-tier cities with buyers with higher purchasing
power and strong GDP growth.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
On 15th February, 2007, the Company entered into an

agreement with Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group Company
Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech”) over the acquisition of Tianjin Hi-
Tech New Star Investment Company Limited (“Hi-Tech New
Star”) and Tianjin Hi-Tech Sun Investment Company Limited
("Hi-Tech Sun”) (the “First Acquisition”), both being wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Tianjin Hi-Tech, for a total consideration
of RMB2,026 million. The principal asset of Hi-Tech New Star
is the land use right of a parcel of land located in Tianjin with
a total site area of approximately 192,076 square metres.
The principal asset of Hi-Tech Sun is the land use right of
a parcel of land located in Tianjin with a total site area of
approximately 209,545 square metres. These two plots of land
have a planned gross floor area of approximately 436,730
square metres and 561,221 square metres respectively. The

First Acquisition was completed in September 2007.

On 7th September, 2007, the Company entered into an
agreement with Tianjin Hi-Tech over the acquisition of the
entire equity interest in Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property
Development Company Limited (“Hi-Tech New Star Property”)
and the Hi-Tech New Star Property loan (the “Second
Acquisition”) for a total consideration of approximately
RMB1,420 million. The principal asset of Hi-Tech New Star
Property is the land use right of a parcel of land located
in Tianjin with an aggregate site area of approximately
275,644 square metres and a planned gross floor area of
approximately 563,369 square metres. The Second Acquisition

was completed in May 2008.
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On 26th November, 2007, the Company entered into an
agreement with Golden Result Group Limited (“Golden
Result”), pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed
to sell and Golden Result conditionally agreed to purchase
the sale shares, representing the entire equity interest in
Matsunichi Hi-Tech Limited, Matsunichi Technology (Dalian)
Co., Ltd. and Matsunichi Digital (Macao Commercial Offshore)
Ltd., for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$6,722,581.
These companies are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of digital consumer products. The disposal was
completed before the year end 31st March, 2008.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
On 10th June, 2008, the Company further entered into the

Agreement pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to sell the entire equity interest in a subsidiary,
Matsunichi Digital Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(the "Subsidiary”) for a cash consideration of approximately
RMB100 million to Grace Dragon Int’l Holdings Limited, a
private company the issued share capital of which is ultimately
beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Pan, the Chairman of the
Group. The Subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC in May 2003, but has not carried on
business since its establishment.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION

POLICY
As at 31st March, 2008, the Group had a total number of

approximately 738 (2007: 876) employees. The remuneration
policy and package of the Group’s employees are structured
by reference to market terms and statutory requirements as
appropriate. In addition, the Group also provides other staff
benefits such as medical insurance, mandatory provident fund

and a share option scheme to its employees.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2007: HK6.5 cents).
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thanks
and recognition towards the Group’s management team and
employees. Their dedication and commitment to the Group
has been vital in achieving the successes of the past year.
Thanks are due also to the Group’s highly-valued customers,
our business associates and of course the Shareholders for

their loyalty and support over the period.

On behalf of the Board
Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited
Chairman

Pan Su Tong

Hong Kong, 30th July, 2008
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view
to being a transparent and responsible organization which is
open and accountable to the shareholders. The Board believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework and
platform that is essential for and advantageous to effective

management and successful business growth.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRACTICES
The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Code

on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Listing Rules”) as its code of practice.

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Company
has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code except
for the provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1, details of and considered

reasons for which are set out below.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY

DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the guidelines

for the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.

Upon specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31st
March, 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the
following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Su Tong (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Huang Xiaojian

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun (appointed on 1st April, 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

The biographical details of each Director are disclosed on

pages 21 and 22 of this annual report.

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for
how the Company is managed, its strategic direction and
performance. The Board meets to plan, decide and review
these matters, which resolutions are put to a vote. In
particular, approval of the Board is required for adopting the
strategy of the Group from time to time, major acquisitions
and disposals of the Group, major capital investments,
dividend policy and recommendation, appointment and
retirement of Directors and senior management, their
remuneration policy and other major operational and
financial matters. Day-to-day operations of the Group and
implementation of the Board’s decisions and strategy are

delegated to the Company’s management team.

The Board is collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which were
prepared on a going concern basis. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Also, there is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection of
the auditors.
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The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group and is satisfied
with the results of the review.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Board at all
times satisfied the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (per rule 3.10(1)) with at least one Independent
Non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise (per rule 3.10(2)).

Each Independent Non-executive Director has, pursuant to the
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed
his/her independence and is continued to be considered by
the Company to be independent.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year in addition
to the resolutions passed by means of resolutions in writing
of all Directors. Notices of at least 14 days were given for
regular Board meetings to give all Directors the opportunities
to attend. Special Board meetings were held whenever
necessary. Details of individual attendance of each Director
are as follows:
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No. of Board meetings
held during the
Director’s term of office

in the financial year No. of Board

RAEMREEESE meetings Attendance
Name of Director BEEETZ attended rate
BEEnA EETgRy HLEESSRY HE=R
Pan Su Tong 10 10 100%
V& ERA
Huang Xiaojian 10 9 90%
HER
Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence 10 9 90%
Ng Lai Man, Carmen 10 10 100%
REX
Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny 10 9 90%
EBE Bk
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual for a balance of power
and authority.

The Company understands this division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer.
Traditionally, the chairman provides leadership to the board of
directors and formulate, together with the board, the business
strategies and long-term objectives of the company whilst
the chief executive officer carries out the decisions made by
the board of directors and, with the support of the executive
directors, is responsible for the day-to-day management and

operation of the company’s business.

Currently, Mr. Pan Su Tong is serving both as the Company’s
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. However, the Board
considers that this situation will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company. This is because the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals with
demonstrated integrity. Further, decisions of the Board or
collective decisions made by way of majority voting. The Board
believes that this structure is conductive to strong, prompt

response and efficient management and implementation.

Non-executive Directors

Under the CG Code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Board believes that such
practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the
same time, independence is safeguarded by the necessary
rotation, retirement and re-election procedures which involves

shareholders” approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee of the Company is responsible
for formulating and making recommendation to the Board
on the Group's policy and structure of the Directors’ and the

senior management’s remuneration.

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2008, the
Remuneration Committee comprised Mr. Pan Su Tong
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lai Chi Kin,

Lawrence and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2008, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review and
discuss the remuneration packages of both the Executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors. Details of individual
attendance of each member are as follows:
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No. of meeting

held during

the financial year No. of meeting Attendance
Name of Remuneration FHZES R BEE attended rate
Committee member REZHA BITZ2EBRE HEERRE HER
Mr. Pan Su Tong EEGRSTE 1 1 100%
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RERLE 1 1 100%
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 1 1 100%
Nomination of Directors REES

The Company does not have a nomination committee.
Instead, the Board is responsible for selection and
appointment of its members and for nominating appropriate
person for election by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting, either to fill casual vacancies or as an addition to
the existing Directors. The Board will take into consideration
of the expertise possess by the candidates and the relevance
of such expertise to the Group’s business in selecting and

recommending candidates for directorship.
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On 1st April, 2008, the Board had nominated Mr. Zhou
Xiaojun as an Executive Director of the Company. The
individual attendance at Board meetings has been set out

above.

Remuneration of Auditors

During the financial year, fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company for audit services was
approximately HK$1,500,000 and for non-audit services was
approximately HK$4,690,000, which include fees for provision
of tax services.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Chi Kin,
Lawrence (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Ng Lai

Man, Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line
with the CG Code. The functions of the Audit Committee
include:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any

questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

2. to review of financial information of the Group; and

3. to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system

and internal control procedures.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings at which the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control matters
and the re-appointment of the auditor were reviewed and
discussed. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company was
present at each of such meetings to report and explain to
and answer questions from the Audit Committee regarding
the financial reporting procedures and results of and internal

control safeguards implemented by the Company.
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Details of individual attendance of each Audit Committee

member are as follows:

1Y

. J AN ,
Wy & . B
TEBA - A

BRERZBEREBZEANLEBRET

No. of meetings

held during

the financial year No. of meetings Attendance
Name of Audit EREES RAEBREFE attended rate
Committee member REZHA BIZEERH™ HESERE HER
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RERLAE 100%
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen RENXEL 100%
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny BEHIE T 2 2 100%
Internal Controls Ay B Bk 4o

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control
system and for reviewing its effectiveness. The review should
cover the controls such as financial, operational, compliance
and risk management. During the financial year, the Board
had been assisted by the Audit Committee in reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. No
material deficiencies have been identified so far. The Audit
Committee and the Board considered the Group's internal
control system was effective and that there was no significant
area of concern, which might affect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company.

The Group will use its best endeavor to implement changes
to further improve the Company’s internal control system

whenever necessary.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established different communication
channels such as (i) holding of annual and extraordinary
general meetings to provide a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board; (ii) sending corporate
documents and releasing announcements to disseminate the
latest activities of the Group to the shareholders; and (iii) via
the Company’s website to provide an electronic means of

communication.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Pan Su Tong, aged 45, is the Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company and is responsible for the
overall strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Pan has over 21
years of experience in trading and manufacturing of electronic
products in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States. In
1993, he founded the Group which is principally engaged in
the manufacturing, distribution, research and development
of advanced electronic products including thin film transistors
television, video telephone and portable computer memory
devices.

Professor Huang Xiaojian, aged 46, joined the Group as
Chief Engineer in 2001 and is responsible for developing
technology and new products. Professor Huang was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2006. He has over 21 years of experience
in research and development of electronic and digital
technologies. Professor Huang holds a Master degree of
Telecommunications and Electronics from University of Posts
and Telecommunications and is a senior member of an
Electronic Association in China. Before joining the Group,
he was an associate professor of University of Posts and
Telecommunications and had worked in different research

organizations in PRC.

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, aged 34, joined the Group in 2006 as
General Manager of China Division and is in charge its China
businesses. Mr. Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in April 2008. He is also a Director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhou worked as legal counselor and senior management in
various corporations in PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr.
Zhou graduated from Dalian Maritime University, the PRC,
with Bachelor Degree in International Maritime Law. He has
extensive experience in corporate administration, finance,

legal, international trade and public relations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence, aged 72, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2002. Mr. Lai is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accounts. He has
extensive experience in accounting and auditing sectors.

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 43, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
February 2004. Dr. Ng has nearly 20 years of experience in
professional accounting and corporate finance in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, the United States, and Europe. Dr. Ng is
a practicing certified public accountant, a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Certified Chartered Accountants in
United Kingdom, and an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Dr. Ng received
her Doctor of Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Master of Laws in Corporate and
Financial Laws from The University of Hong Kong, Master
in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and Master in Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Ng is currently
an Independent Non-executive Director of Cheong Ming
Investments Limited (Stock Code: 1196), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny, aged 56, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2004. Dr. Cheng holds a Doctor of Science degree
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA and a
Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of Western Ontario, Canada. He has held management
positions in many technology companies. He was in charge
of funding technology companies when he was with the
Government of the HKSAR. Currently, Dr. Cheng is engaged

in environmental projects.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 47 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 40.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital and
outstanding warrants of the Company are set out in Note 35

to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are shown in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements and on page 137,

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements of property, plant and equipment during the
year are shown in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements of investment properties during the year are
shown in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
156.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Su Tong
Prof. Huang Xiaojian
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun (appointed on 1st April, 2008)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting pursuant to Article 96 of the
Company’'s Articles of Association and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election.

Mr. Pan Su Tong and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen will retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
rotation pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office of each Director, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, is for a period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES
As at 31st March, 2008, the interests and short positions of

the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company and their
associates in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing

Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests in shares

nEBERERERL2A
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R-ZZFENF=ZA=1+—8 ARAEEFEK
THRABHENEZBEATR AR RER
BEE(EEREFF RABKEMNEXVE) Z
Bty - HEARD REFTRERERZS LY
EGRPIFE32GERLALRRAMFE ZER
A - SR L AR Bl P & 2 AR 2 <7 B A A0
EARRANBEBERIMARQA([BR
Prl) s RORBIT -

(a) REHzEZE

Appropriate
percentage
of the issued

share capital

Name of Director/ Long position/ Number of of the Company
Chief Executive short position Capacity shares held EARATE BT
BEx THARESR HE/ KA g% BERGOEE BAEZBHNBED L
(Note 3)
(Bt7E3)
Mr. Pan Su Tong Long position Interest held as 728,901,341 59.63%
("Mr. Pan") He beneficial owner (Note 1)
EEBEE(ELED and through (Btat1)
controlled corporation
ERESHBEAR
MXEEERAZER
Mr. Pan Short position Interest held through 79,053,000 6.47%
ERAE RE controlled corporation (Note 2)
MXEEERFA 2 Ea (BiFzE2)
Professor Long position Beneficial owner 244,210 0.02%
Huang Xiaojian o) EnlEAA
BERAER
2008 £ #§
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

. -
B

EERTHAIRKRS - HER

RkEZzEERAXE (A)

(b) Interests in warrants (b) REREZBZEZR
Appropriate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Director/ Long position/ underlying of the Company
Chief Executive short position Capacity shares held EERARBRT
EE THERKE BR/ KR 57 HAEHBROBE BREBMABEDL
(Note 4) (Note 3)
(Htit4) (Bi#t3)
Mr. Pan Long position Interest held as 66,280,332 5.42%
ERE HE beneficial owner
and through
controlled corporation
ERERBEBAR
M EERA < a
() Interests in convertible bonds () RUBEREXZER
Appropriate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Director/ Long position/ underlying of the Company
Chief Executive short position Capacity shares held EARARBRT
B THRERESR ¥R/ KR &7 BEHBROZE BRAZBRNBEDL
(Note 5) (Note 3)
(Hi#5) (K17t3)
Mr. Pan Long position Interest held as 220,934,447 18.07%
ERAE HE beneficial owner
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1.

69,767,000 shares were held by Mr. Pan in his personal
capacity and 659,134,341 shares were held by Jade Forest
Limited (“Jade Forest”). Jade Forest was 100% owned by
Mr. Pan as at 31st March, 2008. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was
deemed to be interested in the 659,134,341 shares held
by Jade Forest. Jade Forest being a holding company of the
company is also an associated corporation of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

This short position in shares represents the short position in
shares held by Jade Forest. Jade Forest was 100% owned by
Mr. Pan as at 31st March, 2008. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was
deemed to be interested in the short position in shares held
by Jade Forest.

As at 31st March, 2008, the issued share capital of the
Company was 1,222,464,693 shares.

Mr. Pan and Jade Forest held 366,900 units and 65,913,432
units of warrants, respectively, as at 31st March, 2008.
Upon full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the
warrants at the subscription price of HK$6 per share, 366,900
shares and 65,913,432 shares will be issued to Mr. Pan and
Jade Forest respectively. Jade Forest was 100% owned by
Mr. Pan as at 31st March, 2008. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was
deemed to be interested in the warrants held by Jade Forest.

Mr. Pan and Jade Forest held the convertible bonds with
nominal values of HK$7,338,000 and HK$1,318,268,682,
respectively, as at 31st March, 2008. Upon full conversion
of the convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$6
per share, 1,223,000 shares and 219,711,447 shares will be
issued to Mr. Pan and Jade Forest respectively. Jade Forest was
100% owned by Mr. Pan as at 31st March, 2008. Accordingly,
Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the convertible bonds
held by Jade Forest.

Save as disclosed above and those as disclosed in the

section headed “Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of

Shareholders under the SFO” below, none of the Directors

and Chief Executives of the Company or their associates

had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code as at 31st March, 2008.
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1. 69,767,0000% B% 17 M & £ £ LA B A & 7
¥ B 0 659,134,341 W& EEJade Forest
Limited ([Jade Forest)#&H - N —_ZTZ )\
F=A=+—H"Jade Forestﬁﬂ/%f‘iiﬁﬁ
B100% o B - BLEEWRABES B
Jade Forest# 7 2 659,134,341 % f% {5 = #
%5 ° Jade Forest B ARRR ZIERAT  INAE
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3. RIZZEZENF=ZA=+—8 ' ARQRFIZE
BT AN B1,222,464,693 0% BE 15 -

4, RZZEZENF=A=+—8 " &EL4EKlade
Forest# Bl #F H366,9001) 65,913,432

RIRETE - RARBIREBZFH A 2 R EF
Tﬁza E%Ftﬂxﬁxﬁaﬁmﬁé%%ﬁﬂfﬁt'
KRR D B [A 7% 5t A Made Forest?ﬁffﬁ
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5. RZZEZNF=ZA=+—H - &LEKlade
Forest? 5l ¥ A A #2 i% (& % M {A7,338,000
7T % 1,318,268,6827% 7T o 1A AJ 2 % (& %
&%H&Ftﬂ&ﬂ&ﬁsﬁém BB
AR FE D R WE K A& Klade ForestZ1T
1,223,000&&219,711,447H>%H>% HeMRZE
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fiJade Forestii B 2 Al AR G5 2 iz o

BREXEZREERNTXREFASARBAER
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§ - r_f__z-_i - 1&1“ A

DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT BESADHEKRAATFHES
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER BREZRAE
THE SFO

As at 31st March, 2008, the following persons or corporations RZBEENF=A=+—0 gEMEEK
(other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) RANRITHAZEFH U TTATEER (8
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying HAANBESRITHAR) RAR TG &HE
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to RN TIEEREZES REE KM F33605
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO and BRARRBAMGFE 2L MR =SS %

so far as is known to any Director or Chief Executive of the B
Company:
(a) Interests in shares (a) HE#OzZ#ER
Appropriate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
Name of Long position/ Number of of the Company
shareholder short position Capacity shares held EERARBRIT
BRIRERB BR/ KR ES) BFERGEA BREZBABED
(Note 3)
(Bfet3)
Jade Forest Long position Beneficial owner 659,134,341 53.92%
(Note 1) (K&t 1) TE EmBEAA
Short position Beneficial owner 79,053,000 6.47%
Y EnfBEA
Atlantis Investment Long position Investment manager 155,310,000 12.70%
Management Ltd 5= wEKIE
Northern Trust Fiduciary Long position Investment manager 62,028,000 5.07%
Services (Ireland) Limited ~ #F& WEKIE
(Note 2)
(Hfetz)
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER
THE SFO (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in underlying shares

nEBERERERL2A
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BREEZRHERAETHREZ
BREREZRXE (A)

(b) REBKRHzEDS

(i) Interests in warrants (i) TR T W
Appropriate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
Name of Long position/ Number of of the Company
shareholder short position Capacity shares held EERARBRT
RERER e/ KA ES) BERHEA BRAZBNBEDE
(Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 3)
(K13t 1) (H1it4) (H17%3)
Jade Forest Long position Beneficial owner 65,913,432 5.39%

A

(if) Interests in convertible bonds

EafiBA

(i) RATERIERZ #a

Appropriate
percentage
of the issued

share capital

Name of Long position/ Number of of the Company
shareholder short position Capacity shares held EARARB BT
RRER BE/ KR %) FERGEA BRAZBRNBEDL
(Note 1) (Note 5) (Note 3)

(Biaz1) (Htt5) (Bt 7t3)

Jade Forest Long position Beneficial owner 219,711,447 17.97%

) EnEAA

2008 £ #§
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1

DIRECTORS
2sg

DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER
THE SFO (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. As at 31st March, 2008, Jade Forest was 100% owned by Mr.
Pan.

2. According to a disclosure of interest notice filed by Northern

Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited on 17th January,
2007, the 62,028,000 shares were held by Northern Trust
Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited as trustee for Baring Hong
Kong China Fund. Baring Asset Management Limited was
also deemed to be interested in the 62,028,000 shares as an
investment manager.

3. As at 31st March, 2008, the issued share capital of the
Company was 1,222,464,693 shares.

4. Jade Forest held 65,913,432 units of the warrants as at 31st
March, 2008. Upon full exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to the warrants at the subscription price of HK$6
per share, 65,913,432 shares will be issued to Jade Forest.

5. Jade Forest held the convertible bonds with a nominal value
of HK$1,318,268,682 as at 31st March, 2008. Upon full
conversion of the convertible bonds at the conversion price
of HK$6 per share, 219,711,447 shares will be issued to Jade
Forest.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person or corporation,
other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, who
had an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31st March, 2008.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 27th August, 2002 by a resolution passed by
the Company’s shareholders on the same date, the Directors
of the Company may grant options as incentives to any
participants as described in the Scheme for the shares in the
Company within a period of ten years commencing from 27th
August, 2002 at the price determined by the Directors of
the Company. Such price shall not be lower than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company on the date
of adopting the Scheme. An option may be exercised at any
time within ten years from the date of grant of the relevant

option.
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share

B (|
TREBNENADABRER D 2 515 -

option movements during the year:

(i) Directors (i) =
Number of share options
BhEYE
Subscription price per share Outstanding at 22.8.2007

32

SRfiRE R-SBLENAZTZRHARE
Outstanding ~ Exercised Lapsed Granted  Exercised  Outstanding
Before After Exercisable at before before Before After after after at
Date of grant adjustment adjustment period 142000 2282000 2282007  adjustment  adjustment 2282007 2282007 31.3.2008
(Note) (Note)
RoBBtE  RoRBtE  MCEBLE RoBBtE  HIRBLE  HIZRNE
BA-B NEZTZBE NBZT2BE NAZtzB#% NB=tZB%  ZAZt-B
BB bt g} B k8 BATR Bk B&M bt g} ELL BEY Bfif HAAE
(H) ()
kg HKS
#n #n
5.2.2004 130 120 5.22005t04.2.2014 150,000 (100,000) - 50,000 54,035 - (54,035) -
“RIREZ AR ZSSRECARRAE
“Z-B%-AmA
5.2.2004 130 120 52200610 4.2.2014 150,000 - - 150,000 162,105 - (162,108) -
“RIREZ AR 55 EZRRRE
“Z-B%-AmA
20.4.2004 154 142 204200410 194.2014 100,000 - - 100,000 108,070 - (108,070) -
“TIMEMAZTA “2EMERACTRE
Z3-REMATAA
00000 (100,000) S 3420 324,210
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

(ii) Employees (other than Directors)

nEBERERERL2A
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BrE (R

(i) BB (ESKRM)

Number of share options
fEhEsE
Subscription price per share Outstanding at 22.8.2007
SRR HZZBLENBZTZREARE
Outstanding Exercised Lapsed Granted Exercised  Outstanding
Before After Exercisable at before before Before After after after at
Date of grant adjustment adjustment period 142000 2282000 2282000 adjustment  adjustment 2282007 2282007 3132008
(Note) (Note)
HIBELE  RIERtE  HISEtE HIBRLE  RIERtE  HIFINE
MA-B NAZTZBA NAZT2RE NB=TZB%& NB=tzB#& ZA=t-H
BB #2H k8 BAR Bfik BAN B2 L B g HAAE
)
HKS
A
5.2.2004 130 120 522005 t0 4.2.2014 500,000 - - 500,000 540,350 - (204,035) 336315
ZZZME-REA “ERRFCARAZ
“2-mE-REA
5.2.2004 130 120 550,000 - (50,000) 500,000 540,350 - (204,035) 336315
ek Sl il
“2-mE-REA
2042004 154 14 20420040 19.4.2014 3,850,000 (60,000) - 3790000 4095853 - (358010 567,783
“TIMEMA-TA MEMA—THE
ZE-MERATAA
2892005 18 132 28.9.005 10 27.9.015 7250000 (5,550,000) (100000) 1600000 1,729,120 - (108070) 1,621,050
ZRTREARCTNR TENAZTNRE
“T-RERACTER
21.11.2007 - 6.56 27.11.2007 10 26.11.2017 - - - - - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
TRRLET-RIT4H ERtEr-ATHRE
E-tET-AZTRA
12150000 (5,610,000) (1500000 6390000 6905673 10000000 (40442100 12861483
2008 F ¥
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other participants

Subscription price per share

i IR A (&)
(iii) Hih 2 HEE
Number of share options

ERERR
Outstanding at 22.8.2007

SRORE HRRLENAZTZRHAGE
Outstanding ~ Exercised Lapsed Granted  Exercised  Outstanding
Before After Exercisable at before before Before After after after at
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment  period 142007 22820001 2282007 adjustment  adjustment 2282007 2282007  31.3.2008
(Note) (Note)
HIBBLE  HIBBLE  HoRRLE RoBtE  RoRRLE RCBRNE
BA-B NB=TZBH AB=TZRH NAZtzB#& NB=tZB% =ZA=t-H
REBH ELS) BEL i HATE  ERBAR  EAERN L) ABE  EMERE  EMEAR HAGE
Wit) W)
HKS HKS
A A
5.2.2004 130 120 5.2.2005t04.2.2014 5,400,000 (300,000 - 5100000 5511570 - (47500000 761570
“2EMECAEA ZITRECARRE
ZE-MECARR
5.2.2004 130 1.20 5.2.2006 10 4.2.2014 6,150,000 - - 6,150,000 6,646,305 - (4,750,000 1,896,305
“ZERE-RIA ZEINECARAE
“F-BEZRER
20.4.2004 1.54 142 204.2004 t0 19.4.2014 15,150,000 (1,300,000) - 13,850,000 14,967,695 - (14,600,000 367,695
ZERMERAZTH CRIMENAZTHE
E-RERATAR
27.11.2007 - 6.5 27.11.2007 10 26.11.2017 - - - - - 64,000,000 - 64,000,000
“ERLE CERLET-AoTLHEE
+-A=ttA I 5 R
26,700,000 (1,600,000) - 25100000  27,125570 64,000,000  (24,100,000) ~(67,025,570)

Note: The number of share options granted and
subscription prices have been adjusted for the rights issue
taken place on 22nd August, 2007.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Details of movement during the year in the reserves of the

Company are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their

merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st March, 2008, the aggregate amount

of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented approximately 73% of the Group’s total turnover
for the year. The aggregate amount of turnover attributable

to the Group’s largest customer for the year was 18%.

For the year ended 31st March, 2008, the aggregate amount
of purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 97% of the Group’s total purchase
for the year. The aggregate amount of purchases attributable

to the Group’s largest supplier for the year was 89%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, has interests in these

customers or suppliers during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2008.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has complied throughout the year ended

31st March, 2008 with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules with deviations from certain provisions of the
CG Code, details of which are set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code as at 31st March, 2008.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive

Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2008 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Information on the work of Audit Committee
and its composition are set out in the Corporate Governance

Report on pages 19 to 20 of the annual report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Pan Su Tong

Director

Hong Kong, 30th July, 2008
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INQEPENW
R TR

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MATSUNICHI COMMUNICATION
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 155, which comprise
the consolidated and Company’s balance sheets as at 31st
March, 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st March, 2008 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30th July, 2008
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 BZ_TTNF=A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Turnover = 7 4,297,788 3,070,579
Cost of sales HEKA (3,695,779) (2,635,450)
Gross profit EF 602,009 435,129
Other income Hablg A 8 40,904 12,156
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHRC A (31,479) (36,062)
Administrative expenses 1TEE (202,697) (117,252)
Other expenses Hiw & A 12 (70,468) =
Finance costs 8758 10 (237,917) (81,029)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HE B A RS 19,619 =
Increase in fair value of investment & & W 2 A FEE
properties 17 1,586,786 -
Losses on derivative financial PTEeRMITAEER
instruments 11 (548,795) -
Profit before taxation FR 5 A& Al 12 1,157,962 212,942
Taxation T8 13 (471,312) (10,765)
Profit for the year REE i A 686,650 202,177
Dividends recognised as distribution &R A K Z%E 14 51,612 78,996
Earnings per share B E A 15
— basic —HA HK64.49 centsi&fl  HK26.44 centsi (Ll
— diluted —8E HK63.31 centsi#fl  HK26.01 cents&ill
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
SeEERER

At 31st March, 2008 R=ZTZTNEF=A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET F& T
Non-current assets EMEEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - W KRR 16 136,040 221,140
Investment properties "EYE 17 2,790,400 -
Prepaid lease payments TERAEEFIE 18 2,741 5,936
Intangible assets mEE 19 174,735 224,280
3,103,916 451,356
Current assets MENE E
Inventories " 21 68,833 59,084
Properties under development ERBPYE 22 1,038,395 -
Trade and other receivables P MK B 5 R L A JE Lt
IR 23 984,816 980,794
Amounts due from related JE W A& A RIRIR
companies 24 1,932 2,973
Prepaid lease payments TER & 08 18 63 135
Pledged bank deposits BHEARITIER 26 662,292 799
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRS 26 2,800,033 1,751,274
5,556,364 2,795,059
Current liabilities mENA &
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R R L Al R AT
I8 27 296,635 230,677
Amount due to ultimate holding FER B AR R A A
company FRIE 28 30 880
Amount due to a related e —RE R A
company SRIH 29 11,700 11,700
Taxation payable FEBT 1A 63,030 13,951
Derivative financial instruments MTEemIA 30 46,661 =
Bank borrowings — amount due RITER— —FA
within one year 2| HAFRIR 31 1,292,267 1,193,033
Obligations under finance leases BMERNES
— amount due within one year ——FAEEAFIR 32 139 158
1,710,462 1,450,399
Net current assets mBEEFE 3,845,902 1,344,660
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAE 6,949,818 1,796,016

2008 £ )
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEERER

At 31st March, 2008 W=ZZN\F=A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FABT
Non-current liabilities FmBEE
Obligations under finance leases BEMAES
— amount due after one year — —FRIEAREE 32 297 274
Derivative financial instruments MEemIE 30 594,182 -
Convertible bonds AT R (EH 33 1,840,141 =
Deferred tax liabilities REBIBEE 34 425,796 -
2,860,416 274
Net assets BEFE 4,089,402 1,795,742
Capital and reserves AR 7S % (e
Share capital ii'e 35 61,123 39,391
Reserves fE 4,028,279 1,756,351
Total equity M AR RE 4,089,402 1,795,742
The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 155 FABEZFISEMEACEZEUBHREERN

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 30th July, 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pan Su Tong
DIRECTOR
BFE

Annual Report 2008
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

BALANCE SHEET
EEEEX

At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZN\F=A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHT T IT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Intangible asset BmAE 19 90 90
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIRE 20 391,721 236,085
391,811 236,175
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H b pE U 5k I8 23 11,685 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEN KT A RIFkIE 25 4,279,191 1,419,526
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIE® 26 43,715 4,496
4,334,591 1,424,022
Current liabilities mBaE
Other payables H Ath fE 1S /IR 27 4,359 52,815
Amount due to ultimate FEAS B YRR A A
holding company FRIH 28 30 330
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT—FEIffY B & Rl 5RIE 25 129,902 30,000
Amount due to a related FES — B3R R FIE
company 29 11,700 11,700
145,991 94,845
Net current assets MENEEFE 4,188,600 1,329,177
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREDEE 4,580,411 1,565,352
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTAE 30 594,182 =
Convertible bonds AR E S 33 1,840,141 =
2,434,323 -
Net assets BEFE 2,146,088 1,565,352
Capital and reserves A& 7R % f s
Share capital & s 35 61,123 39,391
Reserves e 36 2,084,965 1,525,961
Total equity Wz R 2,146,088 1,565,352
Pan Su Tong Zhou Xiaojun
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZE EZE

2008 £ )
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e RS R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 &%= —

T \FZA=Z+—HILFE

Share-based Equity Capital PRC
Share Share compensation  Translation participants  redemption Capital statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
Ba
& REVEE KEMEREE  BERE  SEARE RARDRR RAfk HEEERE  REEA it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T TR T T Thn TR Tin T Tin
(Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36)
(H3#36) (Wi3e)  (Wi36)
At 1st Apri, 2006 RZBENE
mA-BE&H 34346 1,125,948 9,510 2,615 - 173 3,605 84,987 84,263 1345447
ichange differences arising on REAERRARGLE
translation of functional curencies & EEERFIEBEL
to presentation currency LEREE
recognised directly in equity - - - 54,936 - - - - - 54,936
Profit for the year EREH = - - - - - - - 0,17 0177
Total recognised income and expense ~ FREBINARFRX
for the year &g - - - 54,986 - - - - 202,177 257,163
Issue of new shares (Note 35) B (HE3) 5,000 270,000 - - - - - - - 275,000
Expenses incurred in conection with ~ HEARBA Rz
issue of shares - (4,235) - - - - - - - (4,235)
Erercise of share options fifeEE 4 1,388 (70) = = = = = = 1,363
Lapse of share options BRELN - - (1,409) - - - - - 1,409 -
Appropriations AR - - - - - - - 22,633 (22,633)
Final dividend for 2006 ZEENEIRERE - S S S - - - - (27.477) (27,477)
nterim dividend for 2007 “ETLEZRERS - - - - - - - - (51,519) (51519)
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ReEm B ER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 #HZ=ZZENF=A=+—HILFE

Share-based Equity Capital PRC
Share Share compensation  Translation participants  redemption Capital statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
R4
& RitEE REHERSE REGRRE SEARE RARERE RAGE PEEERR REER &
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tin ThEn ThL T Tin Tin ThL T Tin T
(Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36)
(H3#36) (i) (Hi36)
At 31st March, 2007 RZRLE
ZA=t-A&R 39,391 1,393,101 8,031 57,601 - 173 3,605 107,620 186,220 1,795,742
Bxchange differences arising on REAERRARGE
translation of functional currendies B EME2FI R EL
to presentation currency LEREE
recognised directly in equity - - - 257,203 - - - - - 257,203
Reversal upon disposals of HERBRAKER
subsidiaries - - - (9,226) - - (3,605) - - (12,831)
Profit for the year ERE - - - - - - - - 686,650 686,650
Total recognised income and FREEARARA
expense for the year a8 - - - 27977 - - (3,605) - 686,650 931,022
Issue of new shares (Note 35) BiriRe (H30) 19851 1,507,889 - - - - - - - 1521740
Deemed distribution upon issue REATAREARIEAR
of convertible bonds - - - - (201,860) - - = = (201,860)
Expenses incurred in connection with & TRIAM3 M2 XL
issue of shares - (9,402) - - - - - - - (9,402)
Exercise of share options 1789 53,437 (6,488) B - - - - - 48738
Exercise of warrants 9 16,675 - - - - - - - 16,767
Recognition of equity-settled
share - based payments AER IR - - 3),267 - - - - - - 30,67
Lapse of share options ElEX - - (50) - - - - - 50 =
Appropriations b - - - - - - - 31,655 (31,655) -
Transfer (Note) (W) - - - - - - - (46,869) 46,869 -
Transfer upon disposals of subsidiaries i EHBA AR EE - - - - - - - (18,128) 18,128 =
Final dividend for 2007 “ERLEZRIRS - - = = = - - - (51,612) (51,612)
At 31st March, 2008 RZZENE
ZA=T-REH 61,123 2,961,700 33,760 305,578 (201,860) 173 - 74278 854,650 4,089,402
Note: During the year, the board of directors of two subsidiaries in MizE: EFER - BE LA EAREZANE AWM

the People’s Republic of China passed resolutions to transfer

part of their statutory reserves to retained profits.

MEARNERESBBARARR  BEMHE
EfEEEREREETN -

2008 £ )
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

n‘l-ﬁ Iﬁlﬁljlbi%

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 BZ_TTNF=A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = FER FHET
Operating activities BT
Profit before taxation BR3¢ B ) Al 1,157,962 212,942
Adjustments for: TEL T 5%
Interest income FEWA (36,436) (10,859)
Finance costs &R 237,917 81,029
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEK B A A AT s (19,619) =
(Reversal of) allowance for bad AR (BB D) BB
and doubtful debts (4,022) 11,701
Allowance (reversal of allowance) FERE (RERD)
for inventories 11,530 (5,217)
Release of prepaid lease payments FRRR TR &5 108 135
Amortisation of trade marks 8 1R 1 5 12,630 12,630
Depreciation of property, plant M- RERZERE
and equipment 23,440 30,487
Losses on derivative financial TESRMIAZEE
instruments 548,795 -
Impairment loss on trade marks 1S 2R E 18 36,915 -
Increase in fair value of HEYERTEEM
investment properties (1,586,786) =
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  #BERERE
plant and equipment o) % 122 58
Share-based payments expenses L/(fo RBEME 20 32,267 =
Unrealised exchange difference RELENEZH 121,364 -
Operating cash flows before Rt BESEBHA 2
movements in working capital RERERE 536,187 332,906
Increase in properties under development ?é‘)féq:‘ ESYII (979,539) =
(Increase) decrease in inventories T“”(iibﬂ)/ﬂid‘ (23,017) 15,115
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE 57 B 50 e L b LS R TR 3 (61,083) (345,007)
Increase (decrease) in trade and JRE 11 B 3% R HL 4 e {5 /IR
other payables =20 G ) 148,599 (41,955)
Cash used in operations REEBRERL (378,853) (38,941)
Taxation paid E%MRIE (4,910) (11,719)
Taxation refunded EiRE IR 6,126 =
Net cash used in operations REEBHR LML FHE (377,637) (50,660)
Investing activities REZD
Purchase of investment properties BAREYE (1,126,318) =
(Increase) decrease in pledged BT 3 (38 00) 3 A
bank deposits (662,294) 3,646
Purchase of property, plant BAYE HEREE
and equipment (8,455) (6,345)
Disposals of subsidiaries (net of cash & KB 7 (R AT &
and cash equivalent disposed of) Zﬁ%&fﬁ%%%%) 39 (4,423) =
(Repayment from) advance to BE N B B
related companies 1,041 (840)
Interest received 24 AE 36,436 10,859
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WBERELE
plant and equipment P15 5038 403 75
Acquisition of assets and liabilities FERNEMNBARIKEEE
through acquisition of subsidiaries REEHRAkE RS
(net of cash and cash equivalent MIR&EEY)
acquired) 38 35 -
Net cash (used in) from investing activities &&EBRE (i) R AFHE (1,763,575) 7,395
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mMEREMER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 #HZ=ZZENF=A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENF ZTELF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Lif= FTER FHET
Financing activities RBMEES
Interest and finance charges paid EFE R E R (165,228) (69,564)
Proceeds from issue of new shares ?*ﬁ%ﬁﬁxfﬁﬁfr?%?ﬁ( 1,786,578 275,000
Proceeds from issue of convertible AR R AT {5 K18
bonds 1,418,704 -
Proceeds from issue of shares upon PATT it B8 AR A 5 B 1T AR )
exercise of share options P15 5038 48,738 1,363
Proceeds from issue of shares upon RITE R R B B 21T
exercise of warrants R0 P15 3R 11,065 -
Expenses incurred in connection HE1TRM M5 Bz X
with issue of shares (9,402) (4,235)
New bank loans raised BEFWMBRITER 1,524,633 662,917
Net cash outflow of trust receipt ERBEERR SR
loans FE (671,341) (119,577)
Repayment of bank loans BERETER (685,443) (301,766)
Repayment of obligations under RERMERNEEEYR
finance leases (218) (251)
Repayment to ultimate holding AR R A R K
company (850) (8,205)
Repayment to a related company m— R E R RER - (391)
Dividends paid BIRE (103,104) (36,038)
Net cash from financing activities BEZHRESARAFRE 3,153,132 399,253
Net increase in cash and cash RekBeSBYM2HEINTEE
equivalents 1,011,920 355,988
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzRekReEED
beginning of the year 1,751,274 1,303,571
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ MNEEREH) 7 /2 36,839 91,715
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FR72Be R EED
of the year 2,800,033 1,751,274
Analysis of balances of cash and cash RekBReSBNMoEEIN
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRE 2,800,033 1,751,274
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ARSI EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Jade Forest Limited (“Jade
Forest”), a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information included in

the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is different from the
functional currency of the Company, Renminbi (“RMB")
as the Company is a public company incorporated in
Hong Kong with its shares listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are located
in Hong Kong and therefore, the directors consider
that Hong Kong dollars is preferable in presenting the
operating result and financial position of the Company
and the Group. The majority of the Company’s
subsidiaries are operating in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"”) with RMB as their functional currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries at 31st March,
2008 are set out in Note 47.
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group and the Company have
applied, for the first time, the following new standard,
amendment to Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and interpretations (“HK(IFRIC) -Int"”) (new
“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are
effective for the Group’s and the Company’s financial
year beginning 1st April, 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(FRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

HK(IFRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted in the

following areas:

- The impact of application of HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures” has been to expand
the disclosures provided in the consolidated
financial statements regarding the Group’s
financial instruments, especially on the

sensitivity analysis to market risk.

- The impact of application of HKAS 1
(Amendment) “Capital Disclosures” has been
to disclose information regarding its objectives,

policies and processes for managing capital.

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

2.

ERAFERBTZESRE
Haea (ERYKREE
8l )

RAFE  AEEBRAQRE HXER
BRAEBZMAE ([BESFTMAE])
Mz ZIEFAER] - BE G ER ([FH
Bartgll]) il kEE(H5 (E
B mEnEZeE e -2E)((F5F
BB EER]) c ZEFB BB R
HFHEANR T LFHA—H2EH
WM AEB R ARG SRR AER -

BRGEAF IR
CHES)
ERUBRELNETRE SRIA BE

Bk (ARMHEERE
Z8¢8)-2RA8H
Bk (ARMHaERE
Z88)-2RE9%
R (ARMHaERE
Z88)-2RA10R
R (ARMHaERE
ZE8)-2RANR

FRMBHREERELS
ZEE
RETETAZEHFE

PHRBRERAE

FRMBRERRELS
-SELEBRNRS

R BEEMBHRELNEE T

Z2 .
=

- ERBAEWBREENFTH

[ERTE BRI ZEERR
EUMBHREARAEE SR
TAMEHRZBEENESE
R-LERBEBMSRR ZH
BREDH

- EREEEEAUNFEIR (EFT

) [BARE 2 Y EARES
MEEEARZEE BER
B2 AR -

2008 £ )

49



Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ARSI EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (CONTINUED)

The application of the remaining new HKFRSs has had
no material effect on how the results and financial
position of the Group and the Company for the
current or prior accounting periods are prepared and

presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has

been required.

The Group and the Company have not early adopted
the following new and revised standards, amendments

or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”) (CONTINUED)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2009

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2008

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2008

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st July,
2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control,
which will be accounted for as equity transactions.
HKAS 23 (Revised) removes the option to expense
borrowing costs as incurred and requires capitalisation
of borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets.
Qualifying assets are assets that take a substantial
time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
The Directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the potential impact and so far concluded
that the application of the other new or revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and financial position of
the Group and the Company.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The principal accounting policies adopted

are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up
to 31st March each year. Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits

from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition

or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Annual Report 2008

3.

FRGHE

A MRS VIRE R AR
eI TS AT B B A BT - R
EMERETORIANRAT@E:

B o
Ea

BAMBRENREESEHHA
BB BB E S AR - Ut
S BAMBREREEABARS
BB IR 2 R % £ A A R A A
REzBREBAN DRMZEE
BEHBENT -

SEREEE
REFBHREREARE RAREFE
EZER(EMBARFEEF=A
=t RIEZHMBRE - WARB AR
RE—EERZMBREEHE - AR
ZEBZEBERNGR  BRAE
il -

AEARBREEZMBRARMNE
B ERBUEBIHEZARBHGR
FREAME) st AESRERA

B AT MRS e EEE SR
BB FHAAEEEBREATZE
HEBE—H -

AEBARREZIABEERARS 4
g WARFXINEGS KB R -



#wABEBARERERAZ2

i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised

at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course

of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment loss.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line

method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned

assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Properties

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose and
classified as an investment property, and carried at fair
value. Changes in fair value of the leasehold land are
recognised directly in profit or loss for the period in
which changes take place.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values

using the fair value model.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified

impairment losses.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
separately are recognised at cost. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible
assets are measured at the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be amortised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined
as the estimated selling price less all further costs of
production and the related costs of marketing, selling
and distribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories (continued)

Properties under development which are intended to
be held for sale in the ordinary course of business are
carried at lower of cost and net realisable value and are
shown as current assets. Cost includes the cost of land,
construction cost and other development expenditure
and other attributable expenses. Net realisable value
is determined by management based on prevailing
market conditions.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset/
liability and of allocating interest income/expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts/payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial

asset/liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into loans

and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies,
amounts due from subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances) are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each balance sheet date. Loans and
receivables are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been

impacted.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 120 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of trade receivables and amounts due from
subsidiaries, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
and amounts due from subsidiaries are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are financial liabilities held

for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose

of repurchasing in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes

any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion
option derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative. At the date of issue, both the liability
and conversion option components are recognised at

fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The conversion option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
conversion option derivative in proportion to the
allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the conversion option derivative is charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, amount due to ultimate holding company,
amount due to a subsidiary, amount due to a related
company and bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants/options issued by the Company that will be
settled by other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
a derivative financial instrument. Warrants/options
classified as a derivative financial instrument are
recognised at their fair values at the date of issue.

If the fair values of the convertible bonds issued to
existing shareholders of the Company upon initial
recognition is in excess of the proceeds received,
such excess is recognised as a distribution to equity

participants in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge
accounting and thus they are deemed as financial
assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for
trading.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other
host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the higher
of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line

basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance
sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the

lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
generally treated as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as

operating leases.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in

the period when they are incurred.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred taxation liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred taxation assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred taxation is
charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity,
in which case the deferred taxation is also dealt with in
equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FZTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair

value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
entities of Group are translated from their functional
currencies to the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

foreign operation is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors of the
Company and employees

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and
vested before 1st April, 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet
until such time as the options are exercised, and
no charge is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options in the
year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company
as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the share is recorded by the
Company as share premium.

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and
vested after 1st April, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve) or
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share option granted rest immediately.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited subsequent to vesting or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Share options granted to other participants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, unless the goods or services quality for
recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustment has
been made to equity (share-based compensation
reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, state-managed pension schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below), that
the directors have made in the process of applying
the entity’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Fair value of derivatives financial instruments

The Directors of the Company use their judgement
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market.
Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied.

The fair values of share options, warrants and
conversion option derivative are subject to the
limitation of the Binominal model that incorporated
market data and involved uncertainty in estimates
used by management in the assumptions. Because
the Binominal model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share
price, changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate. Details of the

assumptions used are disclosed in Notes 30 and 33.

For other derivative financial instruments, (i.e. foreign
currency forward contracts), assumptions are made
based on market rates adjusted for specific features of
the instruments. Details of the assumptions used are
disclosed in Note 30.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers
have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation report,
management has exercised its judgment and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
tax losses of HK$285,380,000 (2007: HK$234,896,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisablitiy of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In case
where the actual future profits generated are more
than expected, additional recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which should be recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the period in which
it takes place.

Estimated impairment of trade marks

Determining whether trade marks are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise. The cash flows used are
consistent with the most up-to-date budgets and plans
formally approved by management and are based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st March
2008, an impairment loss of HK$36,915,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 19.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholder through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total
equity, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in Note 35 and consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As part of this review, the
Directors of the Company prepare the annual budget
taking into account of the provision of funding.
Based on the proposed annual budget, the Directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of

existing debt, if necessary.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from

prior year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related companies, amounts
due from subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances, trade and other payables, amount due to
ultimate holding company, amount due to a subsidiary,
amount due to a related company, bank borrowings,
derivative financial instruments and convertible bonds.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages

and measures.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. HMEIA(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BT EER
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
LS AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE —TT+F ZEENF ZTTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FBTT FTERT FAET
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables B 3K W k1A
(including cash and (BERER
cash equivalents) WEZEEY) 4,242,230 2,633,880 4,334,591 1,424,022
Financial liabilities EMmas
Amortised cost PR AR (2,558,273)  (1,340,633)  (1,190,563) (94,845)
Derivative financial PEemIT A
instruments (1,433,432) - (1,386,771) -
(b) Interest rate risk (b) FIEERE

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank deposits and
variable-rate borrowings. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk which
related primarily to its fixed-rate pledged bank
deposits, fixed-rate bank borrowings and the
liability component of convertible bonds issued
by the Company. The Group currently does
not use any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank deposits and
borrowings and the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of assets and liabilities
outstanding at the balance sheet date were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used for the
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31st March, 2008 would increase/decrease by
HK$9,164,000 (2007: HK$2,274,000).

Foreign currency risk

Certain trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and
bank borrowings of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. During the year, the
Group entered into several forward foreign
contracts with a bank to reduce its exposure
to currency fluctuations risk of certain bank
deposits that are denominated in RMB. These
derivatives are not accounted for under hedge
accounting as the Group currently does not
have a formal currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will further consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

e MR

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

6. BT HE(E)

(b) FIEER (&)
DT
TXZHEEDNT - TiRZ e F
BARTTE R R A& B2 F =& [ B i
E - OMZHEBETBREREER
ZABEEBEEREEENESF
WP REE o EF sk TRER50MEE
BTRAEHERETENERZE
A gL EE -

HHEEFHTERS0MEES -
HMmBHEFETE AAEE
REBEE_TENF=A=+—
B 1k FE 2 % F w4
9,164,000 T (Z T FE L & :
2,274,000 7T ) °

() SR
AREEETRWE 558 K EA
FEUWRIE - RITHEBRNIEE &
8 5 58 B B Al B A 5RIR DA I
RITIERAINE BB - FR -
AEEE—FIRITAILBEDED
SNER #) - FE AR P E 8 T A
AREFERTERZEE KB
R &IE - ZETETATIAY
HEFOEARK - AAKEREIL
EEASEH DB - A - &
BESERINERZRER - Wik
— PR EFEREZELHHEKRI
HRR -

2008 £ )

77



Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ARSI EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FZTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

6. HEIHE(E)

(c)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) HhEmEER (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the AEBRARAIzEEEBER
Company's monetary assets and monetary A ERTE (R3S E
liabilities denominated in currencies other than SEERBRAMERZERR
the respective functional currencies of the BB WM
relevant group entities at the reporting date are
as follows:
THE GROUP NEE
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENFE ZETTLE ZEBEENF CZITTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT THER THET
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD")  #7t ([T ]) 55,404 4503 2,448,435 64,864
United States dollars (“USD") 7t ([%7T)) 920 2,684 - 8,841
Renminbi (“RMB") AR (TAR®]) 2,683,345 1,825,283 578,964 771,137
THE COMPANY &KAT
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENFE —EZTLHE ZEBENFE Z—ZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET TET FHBT
HKD BT 2,022,275 1,424,022 2,577,256 94,845
usD ETT 2,312,099 - 78 -

78 Annual Report 2008



mABEBARERERA22ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis

In the opinion of Directors, since Hong Kong
dollars is pegged to United States dollars,
no sensitivity analysis in relation to Hong
Kong dollars against United States dollars is

presented.

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
the relevant functional currencies against the
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used for the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
external receivables and payables as well
as receivables from and payables to foreign
operations within the Group entities where the
denomination of the receivables and payables
is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. A
positive number below indicates for the year
and other equity where the respective functional
currencies strengthen 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of
respective functional currencies against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year, and

the balances below would be negative.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FZTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

Bt T A ()
(o) SmEbz ()
HEE DT (&)
HKD impact USD impact
BreEg EY oA 7
2008 2007 2008 2007

ZRENE —TTLF ZBBN\F _TTLF —FENF "TTLHF

6.
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(o) Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis (continued)
RMB impact
ARBzEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
THE GROUP S|
(Decrease) increase in~ EE & A
profit for the year (R ) (95,748)  (48,662)

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR TRET TR TET

22,939 (54,828) 95,405 259

THE COMPANY NN
(Increase) decrease in & & 7l
profit for the year (48 n) w4 - -

(22,893) 54,829 95,371 =

The sensitivity analysis excludes the effects
of certain forward foreign currency contracts
which were entered into to hedge the currency
fluctuations risk of bank deposits which are
denominated in RMB. The sensitivity of the
forward foreign currency contract is provided in
note 6(d)(ii).

(d)  Other price risk

(i) Conversion option derivative, warrants and
share options
The Group and the Company are required to
estimate the fair value of the conversion option
derivative of the convertible bonds, warrants
and options issued by the Company at each
balance sheet date, which therefore exposed the
Group and the Company to equity price risk.
The fair value adjustment will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in risk free rate, the Company’s share
price and share price volatility. Details of the
convertible bonds, warrants and options issued
by the Company are set out in Notes 33 and 30
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Other price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to the
Company’s share price, volatility and foreign
currency rate risk at the reporting date only as
the Directors consider that the change in risk-
free rate may not have significant financial
impact on the fair values of conversion option
derivative, warrants and share options.

Changes in share price

If the share price of the Company had been
10% higher/lower while all other input variables
of the valuation models were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year would (decrease)

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

6. HEIH(E)

(d) EHtvEHERR(E)

HIRLE T

TXZHEEDIT - BRARF]
B AB IR 8 Ko 51 S B = & i 1 R
HE B AEEEERME - Uk Ts
AREERARERRE ZE(T
SYHHBMMETET R  BRE
&N NP ERKM R

gé.go
BB EH

EARRBKRE LT TRE10% -
BEEARNZEMEHERTT
- BAKEFEEMN 2D,
BNBEREARNRRZFEBERRB

increase and the Company's loss for the year SEAT
would (increase) decrease as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAIT
Higher by 10% EF10%
Derivative financial instruments: MTESRITH :
Share options i g (33,923) =
Warrants R (59,095) -
Conversion option derivative HIERERETET R (124,242) =
Lower by 10% WA 10%
Derivative financial instruments: PTESRTH -
Share options i iR 33,747 =
Warrants TR 56,190 -
Conversion option derivative HEEERETETAR 120,258 =
2008 £ #§
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Other price risk (continued)

Changes in volatility

If the volatility to the valuation model had been
10% higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group's profit would
(decrease) increase and the Company’s loss for
the year would increase as follows:

BT A (&)

(d)

H o fE 48 B B (4

B2
HEHERAPZRELS T
f£10% - MATE E b AR
B QNS E 2 ANEEiEN O
D) MARBZAFEE
BT

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FEIT
Higher by 10% EF10%
Derivative financial instruments: 74 &g T A :
Share options i M e (14,146) =
Warrants SRR RE (24,395) =
Conversion option derivative RIMETAET A (92,965) =
Lower by 10% TFE10%
Derivative financial instruments: 744 @ T & :
Share options i g 16,807 =
Warrants R HE R 24,771 =
Conversion option derivative HiagE(THETAR 97,219 =
Change in foreign currency y .
SN PE 32 2

If the foreign currency rate of RMB against
Hong Kong dollars had been 5% higher/lower
while all other vairables were held constant, the
Group’s profit would (decrease) increase and the
Company’s loss for the year would increase
(decrease) as follows:

BEARELB T ZINEER F
T, T &5%imm BT A B 2 8
% KRB R Oh) 1
ImAR R Z AR FEEEHIEM
CRA) T :

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FEIT
Higher by 5% EF5%
Derivative financial instruments: 74 &gt T A :
Convertible bonds A] % 8 & (39,629) =
Share options i iR i (13,695) =
Warrants R (16,014) =
Lower by 5% TF%5%
Derivative financial instruments: 744 @ T & :
Conversion bonds AR E S 39,629 =
Share options il g 13,695 =
Warrants AR HE R 16,014 =

Annual Report 2008



mABEBARERERAZ2ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

BT E (&)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Other price risk (continued) (d) EHaE&ERREE)
In Director’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses EERE  BRERESMTRENRE
are unrepresentative of the inherent market BB mizREE - JhE B3R
risk as the pricing model used in the fair value BHF LIRS « RREE &
valuation of the conversion option component B E 2 AT EETHER S &
of convertible bonds, warrants and share ZIEEE  METEHZENE
options involve multiple variables and certain BRAE -
variables are inter-dependent.

(ii) Foreign currency forward contracts (i)  SNEERBEIA A

During the year, the Group has entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with a bank
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuations
risk of bank deposits which are denominated in
RMB. These derivatives are not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group are required
to estimate the fair value of the forward currency
contracts at each balance sheet date, which
therefore exposed the group to other price risk.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to the
Company’s forward buying rate risk at the
reporting date only.

Changes in forward exchange rate

If the forward exchange rate of RMB against
USD had been 5% higher/lower while all other
input variables of the valuation models were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase (decrease) as follows:

FARARERERITFILZN
SNERHIAH  BERNAARBR
B2 & T RT3 M @ 2 5
ERBREBRRD - ZETETA
WER LR EHEARR - N&EE
AREREEAEINERREH
(EAKEEHEMERRR) 2
AR

BRI
ATBREDNTIEREE BR
SEBHARRIMAZERBA
EXREBmMEE -

BHYEEZ S
A5 3 6T 7 IR E 7
/TF&5% « T fE B = 2
i AR E - AIAEEY
AR R OR) T

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Higher by 5% EFA5%
Derivative financial instruments: TEEMIA :
Foreign currency forward contracts  4NEZERHIE 4 31,513 =
Lower by 5% TF&E5%
Derivative financial instruments: TESRMITE
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ SMEREFA L) (23,807) =
2008 £ #§
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(e) Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
and the Company due to failure to discharge an

obligation by the counterparties is arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in

the consolidated and the Company’s

balance sheet; and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to financial guarantee issued by
the Company as disclosed in Note 44.

In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies or stated-owned bank in the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’'s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the United
States of America (“USA"). 45% (2007: 82%)
of the balance of trade receivables as at 31st
March, 2008 comprise receivables derived from
USA. In addition, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk by individual
customers with exposure to the Group's five
largest customers comprising 32% (2007: 47 %)
of these outstanding trade receivables.

The Company is exposed to concentration of
credit risk on a few subsidiaries on the amounts
due from subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the Board of Directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s and the Company’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group and the
Company’s manage liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve.

The Group and the Company relies on bank
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
As at 31st March, 2008, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$73,766,000 (2007: HK$102,251,000).

The following table details the Group’s and
the Company’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities, including liability
component of convertible bonds and foreign
currency forward contracts. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. HMBIA(E
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Liquidity risk (continued) () FRBELEAER(E)
THE GROUP K&
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than 36 6months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 3 months months  tofyear  1-2years  2-5years cashflows  31.3.2008
mEYH AEERE W-SENE

kS ZEANT =Z2AER ~ERE-§¥  -Ef  ZEEE &8 =A=t-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL TEL TR TEn TEnL TEn

2008 “EENE
Trade and ERER
other payables HbEWIE - 206,288 - - - - 206,288 206,288
Liability component of R ER
convertible bonds ZAEHHR 7.50% - 53,201 53,201 106,403 1897517 2110322 1,047,552
Bank borrowings RITHEH
- fixed rate - EEd & 5.64% = 375,235 258,489 = - 633,724 616,187
- variable rate - 288 6.56% 328,018 360,898 = = - 688,916 676,080
Foreign currency St
forward contracts - - 32,609 15,071 - - 47,680 46,661
Obligations under finance ~~ BER4IERH
leases 5.37% 44 44 91 176 164 519 436
Amount due to ultimate ER&&ER
holding company AAFE - 30 - - - - 30 30
Amountduetoarelated  JEF—FHEE
company AR - 11,700 - - - = 11,700 11,700
546,080 821,987 326,852 106,579 1,897,681 3,699,179 2,604,934
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than 36 6 months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 3 months months  tofyear  1-2years  2-5years cashflows  31.3.2007
mETH AERRE W-B3tE
Mz S@ARUT  ZExAR AERE-F -2Cf g3k HA% =ZA=t-H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T TERL T T TR
2007 “BRLE
Trade and ERER
other payables Aoz - 134,535 53 - - - 134,588 134,588
Bank borrowings RiTRH
- variable rate -F9i8 6.40% 274,838 785,867 158,549 = - 1,219,254 1,193,033
Obligations under finance ~~ BERHEH
leases 4.86% 52 52 89 263 3 487 432
Amount due to ultimate ERS&ER
holding company NEFE - 880 - - - - 880 880
Amount due to a related ER-HEz
company RAHE - 11,700 - - - - 11,700 11,700

422,005 785972 158,638 263 31 1,366,909 1,340,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(f) Liquidity risk (continued)

e MR

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

6. BB IAE(HE)
( HRBELEBR (H)

THE COMPANY XAT
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than 36 6months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year 1-2 years 25years  cashflows  31.3.2008
BTy ARBRE R-ZENE
mE®HE =EAUT ZEAER ~BEAE-F  -E-§  CZ@f f#8 =R=t-8
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T Thn T TR T TR TEn
2008 -2 9% 3
Other payables A ENGE - 1379 - - - - 1379 1379
Liabilty component of TR ES
convertible bonds b)) 7.50% - 53,201 53,201 106403 1897517 2110322 1,047,552
Amount due to ultimate ERR&ER
holding company RAFE - 30 - - - - 30 30
Amount due to a Ef-FEHE
subsidiary N - 129,902 - - - - 129,902 129,902
Amountduetoarelated  JEF—FEE
company NARE - 11,700 - - - - 11,700 11,700
143,011 53,201 53,201 106403 1897517 2253333 1,190,563
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than 36 6months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year 1-2 years 25years  cashflows  31.3.2007
e BRBEE W-BELE
ERAE =@EAUT =EAR ~fERE-E -BCE “ERf ARBE =A=1-A
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T TR T THL T TR TR
2007 g3 33
Other payables EfERTE - 52,815 - - - - 52,815 52,815
Amount due to ultimate ERSEER
holding company N - 330 - - - - 330 330
Amount due to a subsidiary R —FHEHBARE - 30,000 - - - - 30,000 30,000
Amount due toarelated  JEF—FEE
company RAFE - 11,700 - - - - 11,700 11,700
94,845 = = = = 94,845 94,845
Note: Liquidity risk analysis excludes conversion

options derivative, warrants and share options

which do not involve cash settlement.

i RBESERSTTREESRRS
Y IR - RIREE RIBRE -

o=
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(9) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) is determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as

input; and

o the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions
as input. For an options based derivative,
the fair value is estimated using option

pricing model (Binominal Model).

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their
corresponding fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In prior financial year, no analysis of the business
segments was presented as the Group was only
engaged in the development and sales of digital
consumer products. The Group’s primary segment
information in previous years was reported by
geographical. Followed the acquisition of certain
properties through acquisition of subsidiaries during
the year as detailed in Note 38, the Group diversifies
its business to property development and property
investment other than the development and sales of

digital consumer products.

The operations of the Group are currently divided into
three businesses, which are development and sales of
digital consumer products, property development and
property investment. Comparative figures have been

restated to conform with current years’ presentation.

e MR

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

7.

HRAEBEREBHHEER M
MHE R EAMBFEL |25 E
DB - ARBREFZEENE
ERRMRERE REREEBKRENE
NAIMBEE TOERR (RN
38)  MREBBEHEEMMAERHEEN
AEEXBOBEDEERIDER
>§ ®

AREBXRBRESR-H BB EEE
mAENHE  MEBRRRVERE -
HBRBFELES  UNEAFEZZ
IR -
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Business segments

Segment information about these business is presented

below.

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

BE-_FTZN\F=ZA=1t—-HLEEFE

Revenue and results Wi &k EE
Development and
sales of digital Property Property
consumer products development investment Consolidated
URHEEmRRRSE NEER NERE e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE Z2TLF ZBENF “TTLE ZERN\F -TTLE ZBENF ZETtE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TEn TAT TER TET
Turnover S 4,297,788 3,070,579 - - - - 4,297,788 3,070,579
Segment results ECELS 421,531 300,785  (45,593) - 1,549,094 - 1925032 300,785
Interest income Hi e A 36,436 10,859
Unallocated corporate KA B /A F]
expenses F% (36,413)  (17,673)
Gain on disposals of ~ HEMBA
subsidiaries pa€ 19,619 - - - - - 19,619 -
Finance costs MHER (237,917) (81,029
Losses on derivative ~ fTAS BRI A
financial instruments 2518 (548,795) =
Profit before taxation B &A1 &7 1,157,962 212,942
Taxation WA (41,312)  (10,765)
Profit for the year RERRH 686,650 202,177
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SEER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Business segments (continued) ¥k 08 (H)

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 BE-ZZN\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
Assets and liabilities EERAERE

Development and

sales of digital Property Property
consumer products development investment Consolidated
BEAREERARREE NERR NERE g8

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“RERNF ZTTLF CBENF ZTTLF CFENF ZTTLF SBENF ZTELF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Téx  TEr TRz TAxr TRz TEx TRz TEx

Assets BE
Segment assets PERAE 1,200,647 1,491,279 1,195,326 - 2,790,400 - 5,186,373 1491279
Unallocated corporate K2 BL/A ]
assets BE 3,473,907 1,755,136
Consolidated total GARGEE
assets 8,660,280 3,246,415
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities ECRENE (209,899)  (151,187) (50,757 - - - (260,656) (151,187
Unallocated corporate  ADE A
liabilities BE (4,310,222) (1,299,486)

Consolidated total REAEE
liabilities (4,570,878) (1,450,673)

2008 £ )
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FZTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Business segments (continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (continued)

Assets and liabilities (continued)

Development and
sales of digital
consumer products
HEHEER
REREE
2008 2007

“RRNE ZTTLE SRR

HKS$'000  HK$'000
Tan  TEn
Additions to RENE
property, plant k&
and equipment kit 4,890 6,345
(Reversal of) allowance 5 (&)
for bad and Bl
doubtful debts (4,022) 11,701
Release of prepaid ~ BFEFE
lease payments E 108 135
Allowance (reversal ~ FERE
of allowance) (BEAm)
for inventories 11,530 (5,217)
Amortisation of [ElovA &
trade marks 12,630 12,630
Impairment loss AR A
on trade marks Bl 36,915 -
Depreciation of LR
property, plant Rk

and equipment & B40 30,487

Loss on disposal of ~ HE¥% -
property, plant BEREE

and equipment LER 1 58
Share-based payments SR {} BERE
expenses WRZER 32,267 -

Property
development

NERR

2007
ZERtE
HK$'000
ThL

7. TEEHR(#)

k08 (H)
BE-ZZEN\E=A=1+—HILEE
(#&)
EEREE (A
Property
investment Unallocated Consolidated
NERE AAR &a

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“RENE ZITLE CRRNF CERLF CRRNE ZERLR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000

TErn TEr TEr TEAT TEx  TEX

- = 1,980 = 8,677 6,345

- = - - (4,022) 11,701

- = - = 108 135

- = - - 11530 (5.217)
- = - - 12,630 12,630

- = - - 36915 =

- = - - 23440 30,487

- = - = 122 58

- = - - 32,207 =
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations in development and sales of

digital consumer products, property development and

property investment are principally located in the PRC,

excluding Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

sales by geographical market, irrespective of the origin

of the goods/services:

7.

TEER (&)

HEDE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HZE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

AEEZHBHEERREREE Y
FEREREXBIZ2UNTE T

BEE -

TREHRAEEZMETS DB IHE
ZAN (TR E M,/ Rz TRH) :

Sales revenue by

Geographical market
REM S S B2 HERE

2008 2007
—EENE —EEAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FABT

Europe BOM 1,050,598 542,340
USA EE 1,935,600 1,456,916
Hong Kong BB 825,407 74
Other regions in the PRC R B L At i [ 253,622 948,965
Others HAth 232,561 122,284
4,297,788 3,070,579

2008 F 3|

93



94

Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= RS M EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FZTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.
(CONTINUED)

Geographical segments (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets, and additions to property, plant and
equipments analysed by the geographical area in which
the assets are located:

TEEH (&)

e D E (&)
NTROBEEREER
FEhRBREEMELR

Carrying amounts

of segment assets

N
i3

EWE B
1TZAHT

Additions to property,

plant and equipment

SEEEREE RENE BERRE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZITTLHFE ZEENF ZITTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHBT FTER FHET
Hong Kong BB 15,006 27,055 2,960 1,007
Other regions in the PRC FH B L fth 3 [ 4,992,648 1,232,063 5,703 5,254
Others Hi 4,074 7,971 14 84
5,011,728 1,267,089 8,677 6,345

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HMWA
Other income for the year includes the following: FAZEMPABRIEATFIA

2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTEx T
Interest received on bank deposits RIT1F RUER 2 A & 36,436 10,859
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HZE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

()

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9. EERIEESHEEME
EMPLOYEES’' REMUNERATION
Details of Directors’ remuneration are as (i) EEMEFEBOT
follows:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENEENELZ (ZEE 4
five (2007: six) Directors were as follows: NB)EEERZME0OT ¢
Other emoluments
Htti <
Salaries
and other Pension Total
Fees benefits costs emoluments
HeRk
e H At 38 7 BIREAE [k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Pan Su Tong (“Mr. Pan”) EEE(EEE]D - 15,000 12 15,012
Huang Xiaojian mER - 660 - 660
Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RER 410 - - 410
Ng Lai Man, Carmen REX 341 - = 341
Cheung Kwan Wai, Sunny ~ #5& & 273 - - 273
Total for 2008 T N\FRE 1,024 15,660 12 16,696
Other emoluments
Hitti &
Salaries
and other Pension Total
Fees benefits costs emoluments
HeRk
e H At 38 7 BIRER [k X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAIT
Mr. Pan EEAE - 5,200 - 5,200
Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REE 390 - - 390
Huang Xiaojian BER - 403 = 403
Ng Lai Man, Carmen REX 325 = = 325
Cheung Kwan Wai, Sunny  EfE 260 = = 260
Dong Zhi Qiang (Note) B8 (M) = - - -
Total for 2007 —ETLFRAE 975 5,603 - 6,578

Note: Mr. Dong Zhi Qiang resigned as a Director of

the Company on 31st October, 2006.

et : BEEXREER -TTRF+
A=t—HBEARRES -

2008 £ #)

95



96

Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN

N

(=]

RS e o B

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

Employees’ remuneration:

Of the five highest paid individuals of the
Group, one (2007: one) is the Director of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed
above. The emoluments of the remaining four

EERTEBREHEENE

(%)

(i)

EEMS :

EASEEREZESHFALTH  —
Z(ZETLF: —R) BARF
ZEEF BEZMEW EEE -
HHBRAEE MG (ZTTLF:

(2007: four) are employees of the Group, details MEZ)EECHEFBHET ¢
of whose remuneration are as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —TELHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Salaries, allowances and e EMR
other benefits H b 43 A 4,543 4,043
Pension costs R 20 43
4,563 4,086

Their emoluments were within the following
bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

T 51,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 5% 1,500,000 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t 22,000,000 7T

BREZMENFTIIHE :

2008 2007
—EENF  —FTLE
1 3

3 =

- 1

4 4

During both years, no remuneration was paid
by the Group to the Directors of the Company
or the five highest paid individuals of the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the Directors of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during both years.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCE COSTS 10. MHKEA
2008 2007
—EEN\E —TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Interest on: TAFEZHE
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable — AR AFABEER
within five years ZIRITIEFK (126,187) (80,975)
— Finance leases —REMAL (40) (54)
Effective interest expenses on — A ]RES 2
convertible bonds BEBRFEMAX (111,690) =
(237,917) (81,029)
LOSSES ON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 1. TESRMIAZER
INSTRUMENTS
2008 2007
—BENF —ETRLF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTEx FHT
Fair value change on share options BT HM2EE 2 BRE
granted to other participants ZATEE(E (273,901) -
Fair value change on convertible HMHAEITE TR MR
option derivatives EH 2 A EEZ
in convertible bonds (161,088) -
Fair value change on warrants REE 2 A FEEE (67,145) -
Fair value change on foreign currency  4MNEZEHE A
forward contracts ZATEE (46,661) -
(548,795) =

2008 & 97



98

Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS M EE

=]

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

12. BR®F AR R

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Profit before taxation has been B B AT I E Bk (T A)
arrived at after charging (crediting): AT&IA :
(Reversal of) allowance for bad and (BEmE) REEER
doubtful debts BB (4,022) 11,701
Release of prepaid lease A EHKIB
payments (included in B GrtAR
administrative expenses) 1THER) 108 135
Auditors’ remuneration % SRl B & 3,119 2,100
Cost of sales comprises: $HE KA BIE
Cost of inventories recognised as HRERZ 2
expenses BFEERA 3,634,704 2,628,037
Allowance (reversal of allowance) TFERE (B EREmE)
for inventories 11,530 (5,217)
Amortisation of trade marks PR 2 2 5 12,630 12,630
Impairment loss on trademarks EIRZ M EEE 36,915 -
Depreciation of property, plant and M - HEBE R
equipment B TE 23,440 30,487
Foreign exchange loss, net HNDE 5 18 F 2R 6,965 13,398
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - EBER
plant and equipment HfE 2 1R 122 58
Operating lease rentals in respects HEWMEZ
of rented premises KERHHES 22,458 13,878
Pre-development expenditure (Note) AT (FFEE) 70,468 =
Research and development costs off 25 B A
expensed S 4,388 2,375
Royalty expenses hx ## & =2 H 565 759
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 TR A
emoluments) (BEE=H2)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ JEAL R ERL 60,364 43,522
Retirement benefits cost R RAEF B A 2,292 2,518
Share-based payments expenses VAR 0 B EL T 2 3K 32,267 -
94,923 46,040

Note: The amount represented expenses incurred before the

development of a property development projects for

both property development and property investment

segments.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

TAXATION 13. HIE
2008 2007
—EEN\E —TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
The charge comprises: I8 HB4E
The Company and subsidiaries: KRR RWEAA :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R TISH
— Current year - RFE (45,215) (11,765)
— (Under) overprovision in prior years - AEFEE (TR ) BERE (301) 1,000
(45,516) (10,765)
Deferred tax IRIEF TE (425,796) =
Taxation charge for the year FEBIAZ N (471,312) (10,765)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided as there was no
assessable profit for the year. Taxation arising in other
countries or other regions in the PRC is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.
Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from
Enterprise Income Tax under certain tax holidays and
concessions. And one of the subsidiaries established
in Macau was entitled to exemption from income tax
under relevant tax concessions. This Macau subsidiary

was disposed of during the year.

AARFEELEERRT G - WEHES
AMEN HMBERK T EHEMME
MIRTZ AR RDAE R TR 2 RITH
REHE o RIBHBERBECI FOER - &
THEBRRAERE T RV H MR R
RHEAMERAER - ZBRFIKILZ —FH
MEARRIEERENGEEEERRHAE
B WRPIMBARERNFALE -
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

13.

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State
Bureau of Shenzhen Longgang District dated 20th July,
2004, Matsunichi Information Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
had been designated as a newly established foreign
manufacturing enterprises. As a result, Matsunichi
Information Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
was entitled to the two year's exemption from
Enterprise Income Tax followed by three years of 50%
tax reduction commencing from the first profit-making
year with effect from 2004 (“Tax Benefit Period”).

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law
of the PRC on Enterprise Income (the “New Law")
by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th
December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations have changed the
tax rate to 25% from 1st January, 2008 after the Tax
benefit Period.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

TAXATION (CONTINUED) 13. BIE (&)
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to FEFMIBS B HBEEWER Z BT A
the profit before taxation per the consolidated income wmAE IR ¢
statement as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBET T T
Profit before taxation R B A Al 1,157,962 212,942
Tax charge at the domestic R PSR 33%
income tax rate of 33% —ETLF 1 33%)
(2007: 33%) AEZHREXL (382,127) (70,271)
Tax effect of income not taxable for 3t %ffdﬁ'ﬁ BAER
tax purpose WAZ B2 13,603 12,407
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  FLERF M = 71_ 5 HR 2
for tax purpose 2R (317,797) (10,643)
Tax effect of tax losses j’[ﬁﬁﬁuuzmlﬁgﬁg
not recognised B E (30,046) (25,482)
Withholding tax on undistributed MEBARARDIREFZ (29,100) =
earnings of subsidiaries (Note 34) a0 ﬁ(WE‘ISM
Effect of tax exemptions granted to BT HENE A
the PRC subsidiaries Zfﬂlﬁfﬁﬁz%’a - (6,959)
Effect of tax exemptions for offshore MBEFE RN 2 HIERR R
profits 2R 17,622 59,327
Income tax on concessionary rate HEBRAE 2GR 138,591 29,856
Effect of tax rate differential between  33% [ 25%7%% X 1~ [A
33% and 25% 28 117,634 -
(Under)overprovision in prior year BAEFEZ (BETR)
kR i (301) 1,000
Others H Aty 609 =
Taxation charge for the year FEMEZH (471,312) (10,765)
2008 & 3§ 101
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2008 2007
—EENF —TETLF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
2007 proposed final dividend of “ETEFRIRRHRKRE
HK6.5 cents per share & §6.578 1L - 51,593
Dividends recognised as distribution FRNERED K
during the year: 2R
Final dividend in respect of previous F—5E
year NHA AR S 51,612 27,477
2007 interim dividend of —EELEHHREER
HK 7.5 cents per share 7.5%10 - 51,519
Total dividends paid/payable BN B 4% 51,612 78,996
No final dividend in respect of year ended 31st ARAEFUTEBRNEHEZEZZT)N
March, 2008 has been proposed by the Directors of FZA=T—HLEFEZREARE - K
the Company. The final dividend in respect of year REESEBRNEHE_TTLF=H

ended 31st March, 2007 of HK6.5 cents per share on
793,734,683 ordinary shares had been proposed by the

Directors of the Company.

Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per FBRRERARE SRR BRE T ERET
share is based on the following data: &
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Earnings ZF|
Profit for the purpose of basic and HETEFRERR
diluted earnings per share BERF (KRR A
(profit for the year attributable to A ARG
equity holders of the Company) FEm ) 686,650 202,177
2008 2007
—EENE ZTELF
Number Number
of shares of shares
(Restated)
B 10 8 H &7 & B
(&E35)
Number of shares B E B
Weighted average number of R EERERRZT
ordinary shares for the purpose of 2SR N
basic earnings per share 159 2 1,064,669,451 764,719,318
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary VE 1T S T m
shares 2B
— Share options - MR A 19,919,784 12,605,037
Weighted average number of HEREERT
ordinary shares for the purpose of 2 AR N
diluted earnings per share EHE 1,084,589,235 777,324,355
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for M ETRER R E R 2 E@AR N
the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share BIEAHHEASETELFENAZFT AR
has been adjusted for the rights issue on 28th August, Z AR AR T VB AR o
2007.
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the REZ-ZZENGF=A=+T—HILFE
year ended 31st March, 2008 does not assume the L EREERN A BN REE LR
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible AT M ARITRE 2 AT AR ES KRR E
bonds and warrants since their exercise would result in B BETEERERREREM -
an increase in profit per share.
2008 £
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Annual

16. ¥ - BB RRE

Furniture,
Plant and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HENE i
BF HBERRE % RERSEM RE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TATL THIL
THE GROUP p:3-.|
AT COST HAR
At 1t April, 2006 RZZZ ENA—-A 108,760 165,844 3,698 6,084 4,404 288,790
Exchange realignment I 2R 4,568 14,022 - 428 166 19,184
Additions Em 1,178 2,939 1,008 647 573 6,345
Disposals & - - (289) (179) (145) (613)
At 31st March, 2007 RIZTLE=R=1-H 114,506 182,805 4417 6,980 4,998 313,706
Exchange realignment e 3,111 9,491 48 655 210 13,515
Additions | - 1,641 3,406 1,883 1,747 8,677
Disposals & - - (1,890) (12) (893) (2,795)
Disposals of subsidiaries HENB AT (35,491) (96,396) (1,652) (2,108) (808) (136,455)
At 31st March, 2008 RZZZN\E=A=+-H 82,126 97,541 4,329 7,398 5,254 196,648
DEPRECIATION il
At 1t April, 2006 RZZE ENA—R 4,658 45,940 2,428 4,285 1,744 59,055
Exchange realignment e 331 2,983 - 141 49 3,504
Provided for the year FEEE 4,566 21,839 1,263 1933 886 30,487
Eliminated on disposals HE R = = (289) (102) (89) (480)
At 315t March, 2007 RZZE+E=A=1-H 9,555 70,762 3,402 6,257 2,590 92,566
Exchange realignment 2R 432 3,270 17 330 78 4127
Provided for the year FEAE 3,009 16,398 1,503 1,609 921 23,440
Eliminated on disposals B R 3 - - (1,579) - (691) (2,270)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR (7,002) (46,547) (1,568) (1,767) (371) (57,255)
At 315t March, 2008 RZEENEF=f=1-H 5,994 43,883 1,775 6,429 2,527 60,608
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31st March, 2008 RZEENEZA=1-H 76,132 53,658 2,554 969 2,721 136,040
At 315t March, 2007 RZZELE=A=1—-H 104,951 112,043 1,015 723 2,408 221,140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Note:

On 31st July, 2003, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement to acquire the entire equity interests in
Best Concord Group Limited, which beneficially owned
a plant under construction situated at Shenzhen, the
PRC, from Matsunichi Communications (Hong Kong)
Limited, a company which was wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Pan, a beneficial owner of Jade Forest
and a Director of the Company, at a consideration of
HK$78,000,000, which is included in the buildings.
The remaining balance outstanding as at 31st March,
2008 of HK$11,700,000 has been included in the
amount due to a related company in the current
liabilities (see Note 29) which shall be payable upon
completion of due registration of the title of the plant
in the name of Best Concord Group Limited, when
all necessary licences for commencing operation of
the plant by Best Concord Group Limited have been
obtained. As at 31st March, 2008, the title of the
plant was registered under the name of a subsidiary
directly held by Best Concord Group Limited.

The buildings are located on land held under medium

term lease and are located in the PRC.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s motor vehicles

and furniture, fixtures and equipment include an
amount of HK$342,000 (2007: HK$436,000) and
HK$203,000 (2007: HK$21,000), respectively, in

respect of assets held under finance leases.

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

16. W% - #BERHRE A

Bt R—TEE=F+A=+—80 K&
Bl —HEEERZ RNRBEM
(&%) AR A A Y #EBest Concord
Group Limitedz 2 i - A B &
#(BHE) AR AR JyHlade Forest
EnBMBARARRESRELLESR
& R E#EA ° Best Concord Group
Limited Bl & %= # A iz % & EOZE I
MZEEFBE EHZREAR
78,000,000/ 7T © B B ¥ % E 5l A
EF RZZZN\F=A=+—H
J& 5% i R 1~ 2 8% X 411,700,000
7T BIIARE A E EM—ERE
ARFA( RHE29) @ BNEEA
SR RS 2 # ABest Concord Group
Limited#& & [EX &350 © A R EN/SBest
Concord Group Limitedi§ R 1% &
s 2 —IRF Rl B - R=ZEF
NE=ZA=+—H8 HBEEZ#EE MU
Best Concord Group Limited &
BEZHBRRIZZEER -

ZEFRRNAREEORE 2 i b
Wz 3 o

REBETNABREM BEREMZ
REBERURERNBTE ZEEMLER
o 5l £342,0008 L (ZEF L F
436,000/ Jt) &%203,0008 5 (= 2=
+4F 21,000 7T) °

2008 £ )
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

16. W% > #BERHRE A

The above items of property, plant and equipment are L HMERZEDNEZER

depreciated on a straight line basis at the following Tl FERIFTE -

rates per annum:

Buildings Over the estimated useful life of BF —t+FE 2 fHEA
20 years, or the unexpired term FB & BR sl A &
of the relevant lease, whichever BEAMELEA
is shorter (ARG HR

RUE)

Plant and machinery 10% - 20% W33 & % 10% — 20%

Leasehold improvements Over the estimated useful life of HEWEEE AF 2z hE A A
5 years or the unexpired term FHiSL (MR A
of the relevant lease, whichever BT A9 HA A
is shorter (B BB

RUE)

Furniture, fixtures and ~ 20% — 33'/5% B HERBEM  20% — 33',%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20% A E 20%

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BREYZE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1st April, 2006, 1st April, 2007 RZZFZERFHUA—H  ZTZTLF
and 31st March, 2008 MA-—BR-_FTENF=A=+—H -
Acquired through acquisition F B EE B A A
of subsidiaries 1,105,290
Additions NE 21,028
Increase in fair value recognised in RiRa W am R ERZ A TE 2N
the consolidated income statement 1,586,786
Exchange realignment ME W B 77,296
At 31st March, 2008 RZZEZENF=HAH=+—H 2,790,400

Annual Report 2008
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31st March, 2008 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank
Petty Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group, who has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation, which conforms to “First
Edition of The HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties”
published by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, was
arrived at by adopting the direct comparison approach
making reference to the recent transactions of similar
properties under the prevailing property market

conditions.

All of the Group’s investment properties represented
leasehold lands located in the PRC under long lease,

which were held for undetermined future use.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land use

rights in the PRC under medium-term leases.

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

17.

18.

REWE (&)

AEBREMER_ZTZENF=A
=T BZAFEDREARSEEIL EH
B2 B A B R E R ER A BIEED
TERARNE BER ZAENE XK
DrRIETER T AR AR R AR R E LY
EZEEAGREERIOINER - &
BNERBEANEMBENNEN ZIFE
BEMBEMELERES R 2
RRIRES Y E T ISR BRI % 2 a1 %2
% RRERLBAREHE -

AEBZE2HMREDEURTE - B
REHBEQFAERLARE B KBS
sk 1A

BANEERIER
7% B 2 T BOA Th I A A
KRB I R B 2 S P A -

THE GROUP
rEE
2008 2007
—BENF —EETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FERE B MIEE DT :

Current portion B 1D 63 135
Non-current portion IERBNED 10 2,741 5,936
2,804 6,071
2008 F ¥
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. BREE

Club
Trade marks debentures Total
mE gFES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFH&T FATT TET
THE GROUP REE
AT COST 2%
At 1st April, 2006, RZETRFEMA—H
31st March, 2007 —EELF=F=1+—H
and 31st March, 2008 ;r—ZEZENF=A=+—H
ot 17 251,650 610 252,260
AMORTISATION e
At 1st April, 2006 RZZERFMNA—HZ &8 14,830 - 14,830
Charge for the year FEZH 12,630 = 12,630
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZET+E=A=+—HE&H 27,460 = 27,460
Charge for the year FEX W 12,630 - 12,630
At 31st March, 2008 RZEZENF=A=1+—H# 40,090 = 40,090
IMPAIRMENT AR
At 1st April, 2006 and RZZEZRNFOA—BR
31st March, 2007 —EE+F=A=1+—H
AR = 520 520
Impairment loss FREBEEE
for the year 36,915 - 36,915
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEENFE=A=+—H 36,915 520 37,435
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEENF=A=+—H 174,645 90 174,735
At 31st March, 2007 R-_EZE+F=F=+—H 224,190 90 224,280
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19. BLEE ()
Club
Trade marks debentures Total
[k gFES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAETT FAETT THBT
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
AT COST 2%
At 1st April, 2006, RZETRFEMA—H
31st March, 2007 —EE+F=F=1+—H
and 31st March, 2008 ;r—ZEZENF=A=+—H
ot 17 = 610 610
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1st April, 2006, RZZTERFMA—H -
1st April, 2007 —EEL+FMA—H
and 31st March, 2008 F—FEENFE=H=+—H
EERR - 520 520
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31st March, 2008 R=-ZEENF=A=+—8H - 90 90
At 31st March, 2007 R-_ZZT+E=A=+—H = 90 90

2008 £ 109
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trade marks

On 3rd November, 2004, the Group entered into
two purchase agreements to acquire the trade
marks, service marks, logos and commercial symbols
of “Matsunichi” in Hong Kong and in countries or
districts outside the PRC (“non-PRC trade marks”)
and in PRC (“PRC trade marks”),
Matsunichi International Holdings Limited (“MIHL")
or/and Guangdong Matsunichi Electronics Limited

respectively, with

("GME"), Guangdong Matsunichi Communication
Technology Company Limited (“GMCT”) and others,
in which Mr. Pan has beneficial interests in MIHL, GME
and GMCT. The consideration was satisfied by cash of
HK$20,000,000 and issue of 95,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each.

The resolution in respect of the above mentioned
acquisitions was duly passed by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 24th
January, 2005. Pursuant to the non-PRC trade marks
agreement, HK$20,000,000 cash was paid and
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company were
issued and allotted to MIHL or its nominees on 24th
January, 2005 resulted in a total consideration of
HK$229,600,000. The 80,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company issued at a price of HK$2.62, being the
closing price of the Company’s shares on 24th January,
2005, the date on which the Group has taken control
of the non-PRC trade marks.

The PRC trade marks agreement was completed on 1st
November, 2005, and accordingly, 15,000,000 ordinary
shares were allotted and issued to Jade Forest Limited
on that date at a price of HK$1.47, being the closing
price of the Company’s shares.

Annual Report 2008
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BT & E ()
[i5E:

RZZEZTNFE+—A=H  x5EEHH
HNABEBEEREBRAR (AR BEKSE
B,/ RERLBERERAR ([E
RIMAER]) - ERDBABARERG
BRAE ([ERMDBBAR]) REM
ATEIMIERERZ - WKERA ]
EiE - RISER  BREEERTERS
7 N H B DA OB 2R sk [ 2 A A ([ 3E
REIEE]) R E 2R ([
Z]) MEBLERNBREER  ER
MEERERERMABARESEESE
migEs o B AR £20,000,0007% 7T &
#£1795,000,000/% & X EI{E0.05/% 7T 2
FERBR 2RI -

B LMZFREEE ZRBRERR
R-ZEZRFE—F - +MWBERTZR
REFRIAE LIEXAA - BIEBEFEFBEF
Z 1% % > 2 420,000,000/8 TE i -
iM80,000,000/% A A &l FEBARINE R =
EZERF A +THAETREET
MEBEBREBESEREA  SHERE
/$229,600,0007 7T ° #£2.627% 7T (B A
NAROR_EERF—A_FTWAR
EEESIEFREEEHEE B 2Kk
&) 2 B 1% 317 280,000,0000% A A ]
LR o

FREEEHRRER_ZEERAF+—H—
HZERK * Bt © 15,000,0000% & @R E
RERR1.478 T 2B (BIARA AR
2 Y f8) Bt 8 K 317 TJade Forest
Limited °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Trade marks (continued)

The fair value of trade marks at the date of acquisition
could not be estimated reliably. Accordingly, the fair
value of trade marks are measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the Group obtained the trade marks.

Both the non-PRC trade marks and the PRC trade
marks are amortised over their useful lives of 20 years
(2007: 20 years). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the underlying value of the trade marks was
not less than their carrying amounts at 31st March,
2008.

The trade marks are classified under the business
segment of development and sales of digital consumer
products and assessed impairment based on the cash-
generating unit of certain production lines in respect of
the sales of digital consumer products.

Due to the disposal of certain subsidiaries during the
year, the management expects the capacity of the
Group's production to digital consumer products will be
reduced, which will lead to a decrease in sales of the
digital consumer products. Hence, cash flow forecast
was prepared by the management to estimate the
recoverable amounts of the trade marks.

The recoverable amounts of the trade marks have been
determined on the basis of their value in use. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rate, growth rate and expected
changes in sales and direct costs of digital consumer
products during the forecasted period. Management
estimates discount rate of 17% that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risk specific to the Group’s business in manufacture
and trading of digital consumer products. As the
recoverable amount of the trade marks is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the trade marks is reduced to its recoverable amount
through recognition of an impairment loss against the
trade marks of HK$36,915,000 for the year.

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

19.

By EE (&)

i ()

RIS B2 iR P E AT
5o Btk BIEZAFENSEHMEN
RARRT A2 AFER - WHAE
BRSEE AR -

FTERERTRAFEIREABFH
060 (ZZEZLF200) ABH - E=S
R ARZERNEENMREAR=-F
ENF=ZA=T—HZKEHE-"

BRI BREBHEERHELHEE
EBHBUARERBRHEEHEEE
mAE T EEREREM 2 EHHRE -

HRFALEETHEAR  WEEE
EHAEBERBBE EEER 2 EERE
He T - AimEHREBEHEEEmiH
ERL-EHitr EEERHERSNER
Al AR A e S e

AiEzA ke EEEFEREEETE -
AEFEAEBEEZEZREMBAHE
BIRE  ERERHETEHREE R
HEEEMZEERAEDL - EEEM
STZBIRER17% 0 RMIBE MBS T2
EERHEAERAEBRSREEEME
EREEEBEBERR - AREZEZA
WElSBETEREERAE  AE2E
H (B35 1 F N R 1£36,915,000% 7T
ZREBE  BRLEHAKESE -

2008 £ )
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19.

Club debentures
The club debentures are having an indefinite useful

life because they are expected to generate economic

BVEE (&)

Lhx E
SFESEERRNEUNES  RH
787 B 1 3 T8 S50 T 4 O B9 45 2R A 0B

benefit indefinitely. The club debentures are tested for @ BRIESFIRFE2EMEETRENR
impairment annually by reference to the market value. = e
20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. MBARRE
THE COMPANY
¥ NN
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRR S - IR 127,517 83,468
Unlisted capital contribution, at cost JEETIEE » KA 288,582 157,720
416,099 241,188
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERERZBEEIE (24,378) (5,103)
391,721 236,085

Particulars of the Company‘s principal subsidiaries at
31st March, 2008 and 2007 are set out in Note 47.
During the year, impairment loss of HK$19,275,000
was fully recognised to income statement.

Annual Report 2008
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

INVENTORIES 21. FE8
THE GROUP
AEH
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T &L
Raw materials FE R 55,924 45,043
Work in progress 2R an 4,245 6,855
Finished goods AN 8,664 7,186
68,833 59,084
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. BHEFYE
In the opinions of the Directors, the amount is EEDA ZAEEHATeREE R
expected not to be realised within twelve months from S+ EARNER -
the balance sheet date.
2008 £ #§
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FWERF K EMEWRIE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE RAT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—2ENE —TTLF ZBENF —TTLH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FERT FHBTT FTERT FET
Trade receivables JFE LT B 3R 722,845 815,914 - =
Less: Allowance for doubtful W RIREAE

debts (9,198) (34,554) - -

713,647 781,360 - =

Other receivables H 4 e W R IE 271,169 199,434 11,685 -
Total trade and other R AT B 3% K A

receivables FEU IR /B 58 984,816 980,794 11,685 -

1 1 4 Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days
to 120 days to its trade customers. Long credit periods
are granted to several well established customers
with long business relationship. The following is an
aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance of
doubtful debts at the reporting date:

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

23.

JE WS Bfe 0 I L At P W R TR
(%)
AEBHRTEEFZEEENTFI0BE
1208 - BEERT KRR T LB HE
ZEFUESBRZEEN - UTAR
5 B EIARR R 81 ) 2 PR MR OB R AR
BBH T

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

0 - 30 days EF30H 145,702 262,028
31 - 90 days 31£90H 447,127 445,733
91 — 180 days 912 180H 112,710 44
Over 180 days 1808 A £ 8,108 73,555
713,647 781,360

The average age of trade receivables is 62 days (2007:
56 days). Before accepting any new customer, the
Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed

to customers are reviewed periodically.

FEW IR R 2 F A BRIk m62H (ZF T+
F:568) EMEMHFELA A%
BHEEEREPEEERRBEFER
B-REPRIZEERBEIEMNET
=

2008 £ )
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$431,364,000 (2007: HK$568,920,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. For those past due
but not impaired receivables, although no collateral
is hold, the Group has assessed the creditworthiness,
past payment history and substantial settlement after
the balance sheet date, and considered that the default
risk is low, and accordingly no impairment has been
provided. Trade receivables which are neither overdue
nor impaired are in good quality. The Group does not
hold any collaterals over these balances. The average

age of these receivables is 35 days (2007: 54 days).

Other receivables mainly represent proceeds receivable
from factoring of trade receivables and accrued bank
deposit interest. The counterparties of proceeds
receivable from factoring of trade receivables and
accrued bank deposit interests are financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significant reduced and
there is no credit provision required at the balance
sheet date.

Annual Report 2008
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

23.

JE WS Bfe 0 I L At P W R TR
(#)
EEIE RS TP Ve F=4: 1

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

Within 30 days 308 310,587 154,355
31 - 90 days 31290H 279 353,349
91 - 180 days 912 180H 112,390 82
Over 180 days 180H LA & 8,108 61,134
Total s 431,364 568,920

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over
180 days and with no subsequent settlement because
historical experience is that such receivables are
generally not recoverable.

AEBEREE180H A £ R I 7 HA
BBEZEREEREL28EE - TH
RIEBELR  ZFRUER KRR
Yem e

2008 £ )
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ARSI EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EWIRFAR H it B W RRIE
(CONTINUED) (%)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREBEST
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH T
At 1st April R A—H 34,554 23,436
Eliminated upon disposal & M B 2 B B ¥ 8
of subsidiaries (21,477) -
Impairment losses recognised JE W AR R 2 B R (B B 18
on receivables 6,200 10,886
Amounts written off as uncollectible WEEE R A B 2 & 58 (286) =
Amounts recovered during the year FRY R £ 58 (10,222) =
Exchange realignment BE 5, 58 B 429 232
At 31st March R=B=+—¢H 9,198 34,554
The Group’s trade and other receivables that are NHEBAEBER e EE AN §E
denominated in currencies other than the functional BB 7 7N B e UK BE 2k K H b fE Uk 0
currency of the relevant group entities are set out BT :
below:
usD HKD RMB
ETT T AR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAT

At 31st March, 2008 RZZFZENF=A=+—H 596 11,687 14,944
At 31st March, 2007 R-_BEZ+F=HA=+—H 6 - 113,116
All of the Company’s other receivables of AN a E AT F0IE 11,685,000 T iR
HK$11,685,000 are denominated in Hong Kong dollars BT E A TYIEARR ZMEEE
("HKD"), a currency other than the functional currency W o

of the Company.
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mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED
COMPANIES

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies
in which Mr. Pan, a director of the Company, has
beneficial interests are as follows:

24, EWEERQTNRIE

ARRBEFELLERAED D B

BIRIEZFHBWT ¢

THE GROUP

TEH
Balance Balance Maximum
at at amount
31st March, 1st April, outstanding
Name of related company 2008 2007  during the year
MEATER R-ZBENE RIZTLHF F AR
=A=+—H mA—H Y mEsRIE 2
ZEES ZFEER = kR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET TET TET
BERRBBAMSROERAR 84 753 753
mESMET (RI) AR 160 11 160
MBEESELEBD QA 1,688 2,209 2,209

1,932 2,973

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES/ 25.

AMOUNT DUE TO A SUBSIDIARY
THE COMPANY

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
carry effective interest at 5.25% per annum and are
repayable on demand.

The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

BERFETLEER 2R RRERE

g
o

FE WK Ff B R B ROR, A —
B /8 2 B FK IR

AR

R B A R RIE TR - REIRF
FE5.25% it B RIREREE -

FEN — M B AR RIATEER - 28
NIRBRIEE -

2008 £ )
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NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ARSI EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 26. BEBBITER R 7K
BALANCE AND CASH e
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITER
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to BEAZEIVEEEFEREITZER 0 LAE
a bank to secure short-term banking facilities granted BRTASE ZEHRITHE - HUtw
to the Group and are therefore classified under current DEABRBEE - BEFRITHERBRN
assets. The pledged bank deposits will be released BEERBBITHERE BRI -
upon the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings.
The Group’s pledged bank deposits that are B EB TR 2 B ANz BIE
denominated in currencies other than the functional BEMNZANEEZ BRFRITFRE
currency of the relevant group entities are set out T
below:
RMB
AR
HK$’000
FHET
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITER
At 31st March, 2008 RZBEZNF=A=+—H 662,292
At 31st March, 2007 R-EBETLtF=A=1+—8 -

All bank deposits carry interest at market rates which
range from 1.98% to 4.14% (2007: 0.14% to 1.98%)

per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 26.

BALANCE AND CASH (CONTINUED)

Bank balances and cash
The Group’s bank balances and cash are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the

relevant group entities are set out below:

Bank balances and cash  fRiT&F NI S

At 31st March, 2008 R_ZBEENEF=HF=+—H
At 31st March, 2007 R-_EE+F=A=+—H

CHEARTER RITEER

B (&)
RITEERRE
NHEESEERZEEEAINZEE
REMUZAEBZRTEFRRS W
T -
usb HKD RMB
ET BT AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THIT THEIT
324 43,717 2,004,176
2,678 4,503 1,709,194

All of the Company's bank balances and cash of
HK$43,717,000 (2007: HK$4,496,000) are denominated
in HKD, a currency other than the functional currency

of the Company.

As at 31st March 2008, included in bank balances and
cash is cash-in-transit of HK$1,218,214,000 (2007: nil).

All bank deposits carry interest at market rates which
range from 1.98% to 4.14% (2007: 0.14% to 1.98%)

per annum.

EHARBZROTETREA S
43,717,000 L (ZF & + F :
4,496,000/ 7T ) =B T ETE - A Tl &
KRB ZNEEEHE o

NR-ZZEZNE=A=1+—8 " st AR1T
EELRESBEERE£1,218,214,000
BIL(ZETLF &) -

%=

E2HFETHEREMBIERGFTE - BX
BEFE1.98%E4.14% (ZTEE L F :

0.14%%1.98%) °

2008 £ )
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NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS M EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. BENERFREMESRE
An aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet AR AEREEHARE S5 2 BANEREK
date is set out as follows: DT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE EAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ZTtHE ZEBENF ZIZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT THER THET
0 - 90 days T E90H 105,523 22,457 - -
91 - 180 days 91Z2180H 13,598 9,174 - -
Over 180 days 180H A £ 12,358 24,382 - -
131,479 56,013 - -
Dividend payable FERT AR S 1,102 52,594 1,102 52,594
Other payable H & FUR 164,054 122,070 3,257 221
296,635 230,677 4,359 52,815
The Group’s trade payables that are denominated in UTAEREEEREEEBUINCZE
currencies other than the functional currency of the I E 2 AR A 1 J& 5 3038
relevant group entities are set out below:
usD HKD RMB
ETT P TT AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FE T FET
At 31st March, 2008 RZZEENF=H=+—H - 2,382 125,851
At 31st March, 2007 RZEZELF=A=+—H 8,841 52,834 18,866
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 75 BEERFHEEHRATSH - KEE
days. The Group has financial risk management policies BEUBRRERERE  LAERE2IE

in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the

credit timeframe.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Company’s other payables that are denominated in

27.

currencies other than the functional currencies of the
Company are set out below:

FE A IR R H fth B+ RKIR
(#)

BT AR R S S 2 K FIE
Z AN F M FOR

HKD
BT
HK$'000
FET
At 31st March, 2008 R_ZEENF=A=+—H 1,378
At 31st March, 2007 N-ZEE+F=A=+—8H 52,815
AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 28. B HRAEZERARANRE
COMPANY
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AEBRAAF
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable BEREDEEMR 2B REERE
on demand. = o
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 29. E{—BEEBEXRNRIE

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amount represents amount due to Matsunichi
Communications (Hong Kong) Limited in which Mr. Pan
is the controlling shareholder and a director (see Note
16).

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

TEBRAERQH
ZRBERENREEAR (FE)GRAA
ZHIE  BRERMBEM(FE) AR
REZERBEREES (RKTE16) -

ATV EEW - R B RIRERERE -

2008 £ )
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e RS M EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fT&E€®mITH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
REME b N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE —TT+F ZEENF ZTTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET T FHEIT
Foreign currency forward SNE RIS A
contracts (Note a) (B 7Ea) 46,661 = - =
Share options (Note b) B A% (Fff5Eb) 273,901 = 273,901 =
Warrants (Note ¢) R AE R (P 5Ec) 320,281 - 320,281 -
640,843 - 594,182 -
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
REME b N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE Z—TT+F ZEENF ZTTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHAT TR FHEIT
Represented as: AT 23
Current liabilities (Note d) mEE E (FisEd) 46,661 = - =
Non-current liabilities (Note e) ~ 3Ei B & & (Fff 5te) 594,182 - 594,182 —
640,843 - 594,182 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

During the year, the Group has entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with a bank to
reduce its exposure to currency fluctuations risk
of bank deposits that denominated in RMB. These
derivatives are not accounted for under hedge
accounting.

At 31st March, 2008, the Group had outstanding
foreign currency forward contracts denominated in
United States dollars with total notional amount of
US$85,411,000 (equivalent to HK$664,660,000).
These contracts are subject to net settlement at
various maturity dates and are measured at fair
value at the balance sheet date. Their fair values
are measured using quoted forward exchange rates
and vyield curves derived from quoted interest rates
matching maturities of the contracts. The major terms
of these foreign currency forward contracts are as
follows:

Notional amount

CE R

Maturity date
FHH

Buy US$85,411,000
to 18th March, 2009

& A85,411,000% 7T HZZEZNFENAT+NH

E_ETAFE=A+/NBH

ISR

various dates from 18th August, 2008

e MR

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE
30. PTEE€m I A (&)
it

(a) FA - ANEBEE KBTI LS DI
EEHAH  WRPETAARKES
Bz RITFRZEE KB ELR © %
EOTAET A EREINGTHEALR -

R=ZZFZEN\F=A=+—8 ' ~5E
BUAETTABEN 2 RITEINERRE
49 4% 3% %8 /585,411,000 7t (48
E1R664,660,00087T) ° ZEAHH
MREBZBEE FLLFEE WG
EHRATESSE - REZATED
ZRRTHR RPERRRAEREmME
HHEEEMBRAER 2 ESHEME
2 o BEINESHN Z EZHFERAOT ¢

Exchange rates

=

range from RMB6.820/US$1 to
RMB7.349/US$1

H1ETH AR6.8207T
E1ETHARKET 3497T

2008 £ )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FZTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(b)

(continued)

On 27th November, 2007, 64,000,000 share options
with estimated fair values of HK$263,336,000 were
granted to potential investors at nil consideration.

The fair value of the share options at 31st March,
2008 is HK$273,901,000.

These fair values at 27th November, 2007 and 31st
March, 2008 were calculated using The Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price A&

Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility T8 B R R
Remaining life ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁ
Risk-free rate fE [ f 2
Expected dividend yield TEHARR 2 HﬁZﬁTl
Exercise multiple ITEEE

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
before the grant date for previous three years. The
exercise multiple was to account for the early exercise
behaviour of the share options granted by the
Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in comprising the fair value of share options
are based on Director’s last estimate. The value of
an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

Annual Report 2008
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TTEEMI A (&)

X

(b)

(%)

R—ZZEZtLtF+—HA=++A8"
5t A F{E263,336,000/8 T 2
64,000,00015 AR #EE EER T &

wEH  1TEE6.568TT °
%k%% ZENEFE=A=+—Hz

AN F{E A273,901,0005 7T ©

RZBZLF+—AZ+LBER=E
§A¢3ﬂ2+—HZA¥EEM:

BABAGFE - ZEBEX 2@ ASEN

T
27th November, 31st March,
2007 2008
T LF ZTTN\F
+—A=++tH =HA=+—H~
HK$6.567% 7T HK$6.85/ 7T
HK$6.567% 7T HK$6.56/ 7T
60.60% 61.00%
10 years®F 9.7 yearsfF
3.27% 2.56%
1.20% 1.20%
4.90 4.90

BE=

FIREKERAARARENK LR

HRR 2 R SL R IR BETE © TR 15 2 TY A AR A

AN B PR B A 2t

RITTEAT /S °

“IEARAE BIEGFEREZ A FE -

X fs s 4 A
BEEZR

J?TEHTFWHZ“%I&TE“H’JEF
(% A o ﬁ%ﬂx% EENRETIE

BREZ TR BME -



mABEBARERERA22ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

On 28th August, 2007, the Company, issued
397,017,341 new shares of the Company of HK$0.05
each under the rights issue as mentioned in Note 35.
Warrants with exercise price of HK$6.00 per share
were issued by way of bonus in the proportion of
three warrants for every ten new shares, resulting
119,105,202 units of warrant being issued. All
Warrants are exercisable from the grant date to 28th
August 2010. The new issued shares and warrants
were immediately separable upon the issue date.

1,844,249 new shares of HK$0.05 each in the
Company were issued during the year. Total amount
of HK$16,675,000, representing proceed in excess
of new share issued of HK$10,973,000 and fair
value adjustment to the warrants exercised of
HK$5,702,000, was recognised as share premium.
117,260,953 units of warrants is still outstanding
at 31st March, 2008. The fair value of the warrants
at 28th August, 2007 and 31st March, 2008
amounted to HK$ 258,838,000 and HK$320,281,000,
respectively. These fair values at 28th August, 2007
and 31st March, 2008 were calculated using The
Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Share price Az &

Exercise price ona=
Expected volatility T8 B R IR
Remaining life Tl 5 HR
Risk free rate R fe B
Expected dividend yield T8 B B M aR

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price before
the grant date for previous three years.

The Binominal model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the warrants. The variables and
assumptions used in comprising the fair value of
warrants are based on Director’s last estimate. The
value of a warrant varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

Foreign currency forward contracts having various
maturity dates within one year are deemed as held for
trading and are settled by cash. They are classified as
current liabilities.

Share options and warrants will be settled by the
Company’s equity shares and is therefore classified as
non-current liabilities.

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z =TT N\F=A=+—HILFE
30. PTEES@MTIA (F)

fisE - (&)

(0 R-ZEELENA=-_+NH AR
a) (1R 95 Bt 5E35 07 4t 2 i A%) 31T
397,017,341 AN A 7] & X E1E0.05
BILZFIRG - RREE (ITEER
FR%6.00/ 7T) TYIR & R AR D A
BB = DR HEE 2 A 5 21T
4R E£17119,105,2021) RALREE -
FERBEEIRELARE -2 —
ZENAZFNBITE  FETRS
R R BN BT AR M -

1,844,2490% & IR M 1H0.05% T 2
RARFBHERFERNIELT - 25
16,675,000 7T (B P 2% 17 #T AR 1D
Z B FIEAR 2% (810,973,000
TRETERBREREZ A FERAHE
5,702,000/ 7T) B F R AR 7 &
8 117,260,953 RBEBER ==
TNEFE=A=1+—BHHEKRITE - R
BER-_ZEELFENA-_+TNBR=
ZENF=ZA=+—HBZR2FERHI
/258,838,000 Jt }320,281,000
BT e RZEZLFNA-+NBR
—EENEFE=A=1+—B2Z2AFE]
AZEARAGHE - ZEX 28AK

BT :
28th August, 31st March,
2007 2008
T LF —ET)N\F
ANAZ=Z+N\H =H=7—F8
HK$5.55% 7T HK$6.85% 7T
HK$6.007%& 7T HK$6.00% 7T
61% 61%
3.0 years F 2.4 years F
4.05% 1.36%
1.2% 1.2

FBEIRIBRA AR R BRERE L B
AI=F 2 BERIBETE

—ERABAE B R 2
T8 o AR B A T B P 2
SURBLHEREEL RERN -
RREBEETEST X BER T
ELGECE

(d) SMNEEMEHAEETRBEA (9K
—FR)  RERKIEEERURS
BE - RERDBERRDEE -

(e) B R N SR B RB R A AN X ) Z AR
BEBRDEE - Ao B aERE
BfE-

2008 £ )
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FZTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITEX
THE GROUP
rER
2008
—EENF —_ZzT
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Bank loans RITERK 1,159,196 421,751
Trust receipt loans SEWEE R 133,071 771,282
1,292,267 1,193,033
Analysis as: SR :
Secured | 616,187 90,418
Unsecured 4 676,080 1,102,615
1,292,267 1,193,033
The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated NRASREEE e B UINE ST
in currencies other than the functional currency of the BASBRITERHIAT :
relevant group entities are set out below:
AR
HK$'000
FET
At 31st March, 2008 RZBEENF=A=+—H 453,113
At 31st March, 2007 R-BBLF=HA=+—H 752,271
All bank loans are under fixed-rate borrowings while all SR ITEREEEET MEIEE
trust-receipt loan are under variable-rate borrowings. B AEEERR - BERZEHEEA
The average effective interest rates of borrowings RETFII8UET.22%NE(ZEE
range from 3.18% to 7.22% (2007: 5.58% to 7.01%) +F :5.58%%7.01%) °
per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

32. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 32. MIEHENEK

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEXZNHESHE BEXNESEZRE
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENFE ZZTTtHF CZBENE CZITTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT AT TER FTAT
THE GROUP FEHE
Amounts payable under RERMERLEN
finance leases: ZE
Within one year —FRN 181 193 139 158
In the second to fifth years F_EFERF
inclusive (REERRF) 340 289 297 274
521 482 436 432
Less: Future finance charges W ARARBEER (85) (50) - -
Present value of lease obligations F#)EH 2R & 436 432 436 432
Less: Amount due for settlement & : —F R ZIHE
within one year BB (139) (158)
Amount due for settlement —F R HEERE
after one year 297 274
The lease terms are five years. Interest rates are fixed at MAFHARE - FIERETZEHBH
the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment Bl o FTEHALRAEEERELE -
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for WRTVERBEZNZRAEE 2%
contingent rental payments. B o

2008 & 129
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NOTES TO THE-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ARSI EE

For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

33. IEEARES

On 28th August, 2007, convertible bonds with an
aggregate principle value of HK$1,418,704,000 were
issued by the Company (”Convertible Bonds”). The
Convertible Bonds are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible

R-ZBZLENA-F+N\H» KAF 3
1T# 7N & 58 451,418,704,000/8 7T 2 A]
B ES ([FIRARES D) - AT RERES
LA T BB o

B E S FTWEZ IS RIAE

EAT R HAR

Bonds have been split into liability component, DEARBIHM ABRBAETETARRE
conversion option derivative, and equity participants A2HAGE —ETLEENAZTN
reserve. The excess of the fair value of the convertible H ﬁﬂ’f‘%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ? T2 AR ESF 2 R F
bonds issued on 28th August, 2007 to all shareholders B B8 BT AT IR B 5 R 2 FT 18 3K
over the proceeds received from the issue of =R B 7315..382\1&21»?/,\%1;.%1%
Convertible Bonds was debited to equity participant BEHRD MARESTET BEZ AT EE
reserve. The liability component and the conversion (e

option derivative are measured at fair value.

The movements of the liability component and
conversion option derivative of the Convertible Bonds
for the year is set out as below:

AR ESZ BES D KL IREAEITAE
TERFAZEEWNT ¢

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

AEERAEDF
Conversion
Liability option
component derivative Total
R HARE
=R PTETE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT
At 1st April, 2006 and RZZEZRFNA—-—HB R
31st March, 2007 —EE+F=A=+—H = = =
Convertible bonds issued on ABMEEFR T LF
28th August, 2007 NAZ+NBET 989,063 631,501 1,620,564
Interest expenses FMEZ W 111,690 = 111,690
Interest paid AT HE (53,201) = (53,201)
Changes in fair value NEEZEE - 161,088 161,088
At 31st March, 2008 RZZFEZNF=H=+—H 1,047,552 792,589 1,840,141

1 30 Annual Report 2008



33.

#wABEBARERERAZ2

i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The Convertible Bonds are unsecured, carry interest
at 7.5% per annum and will mature on 28th August,
2012 (“Maturity Date”).

annually after the date of issue of the Convertible

Interest is repayable semi-

Bonds. The effective interest rate is 20% per annum.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are set
out as follows:

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the Convertible Bonds
will be converted into fully paid ordinary shares of
the Company on any business day during the period
between the third anniversary of the date of issue of
the Convertible Bonds and the maturity date, at an
initial conversion price of HK$6 per share (subject to

adjustments).

The conversion price shall be adjusted downwards on
the date falling 6 months from the date of issue of
the Convertible Bonds and every 6 months thereafter
(the “Reset Date”) to the arithmetic average price of
the Company’s share for each of the 30 consecutive
trading days immediately prior to the Reset Date,
provided that the adjusted conversion price shall
never be below HK$3.50, subject to the customary
adjustments such as for sub-divisions, consolidation
and reductions in the share capital of the Company.

e R R
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33.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

Redemption

No Convertible Bonds may be redeemed by the
Company prior to the maturity date. Any Convertible
Bonds which remains outstanding by 4:00 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on the Maturity Date shall be redeemed by
the Company at 115% of its then outstanding principal

amount.

The conversion option derivative is carried at fair value
at the balance sheet date with change in fair value
recognised in profit and loss. At 28th August, 2007
and 31st March, 2008, the fair values of the conversion
option derivative in the Convertible Bonds are
HK$631,501,000 and HK$792,589,000, respectively,
and are calculated using the Binominal model. Details
of the variables and assumptions of the model are as

follows:

Share price of the Company B BB ZEE
Exercise price IfEE
Remaining life 4 5 HA
Risk-free rate 1 [ B 2R
Expected volatility T8 HR R 18
Expected dividend yield T8 HA i B W as

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price before

the grant date for previous three years.

Annual Report 2008
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TAZRFESD 5 A631,501,000% 7T
792,589,000/ 7T * JhLAZ A E X
E o ZEAFTAZHERBERAT

28th August, 31st March,

2007 2008
—ETtsE —sEnE
NAZ=Z+NH =RA=+—H
HK$ 5.55/%& 7T HK$6.85%& T
HK$6.00/% 7T HK$6.007% 7T
5 years®F 4.41 years®
4.20% 2.04%
61.0% 61.0%

1.2% 1.2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. DEFERRED TAXATION
The following are the movements in major deferred tax
liabilities recognised during the year:

A + 2
ARE RS M
For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE
34. EIERIH
FAZEBRETEREREABZEE)
T -

Undistributed Revaluation

earnings of of
subsidiaries properties Total
M A= 2
7R 23 K 32 Fl Y EER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T TR
At 1st April, 2006 and RZEZERFHA—B R
31st March, 2007 —EELF=HA=+—H - - -
Charge to consolidated income E Rz A%RA Hzs&
statement for the year 29,100 396,696 425,796
At 31st March, 2008 RZZEZENF=HA=+—H 29,100 396,696 425,796

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance
and state Administration of Taxation. Lai Shui [2008]
No.1, dividend distributed of the profits generated
since 1st January, 2008 shall by subject to EIT at 10%
and whichheld by the PRC entity pursuant to Articles 3
and 27 of the EIT Law and Articles 91 of the Detailed
Implementation Rules. Deferred tax liability on the
undistributed earnings during the three months ended
31st March, 2008 has been account at the tax rate of
10%.

At 31st March, 2008, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$104,441,000 (2007:
HK$234,896,000) available to offset future profits.
The losses may be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect
of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The subsidiaries disposed of during
the year have unused tax losses of HK$165,864,000
and HK$224,748,000 as at 31st March, 2007 and
upon disposal date respectively. There were no other
significant temporary differences arising during the
year or at the balance sheet date.

The Company had no significant temporary differences
arising during the year or at the balance sheet date.

LR BE ARG B D BEBA
BFi[2008]15% - —EENF—HA—HM
REMEERMDIRZKEBEI0%E
MR RER W AR R IR AE R A FE 3R B 2715
FEBEMAUENIGHPEEEE -
HE-_TTZN\F=B=+—HI=MA
ZARDIERER ZIEER T B EE IR E
10% ABE °

RZEZENF=ZA=1+—H ~5H
AE)H 2 BiIEE 18 49104,441,000%8 7T
( ZZEZT+ £ : 234,896,000/ 7T) A] A
RIEHEBBRF - B @B IEBENE
PR AR 45 82 o EEEAE@:/mf‘J?K/J?ZT—I
TEORI 1 - 30 LB IA A 1 TR Eﬂ
HEEE - FALEZHWBA —-=
E+tF=RA=+— E&Hﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂ aill
B A BB 7% E518165,864,00058 T &
224,748,000/ 7L c F AR EE H I
EHMBEANTRHER -

ARRFAINEEALBEERERZ
7
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35.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS 35. REARABREE
Number of shares Share capital
gt A&
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE s 3 —BEN\F “E%tE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fizE TET FHL TER THIL
Ordinary shares of BREB.0SET 2 EBR
HK$0.05 each
Authorised: ETE
At 1st April and 31st March REA-BER=RA=T—H 10,000,000,000  10,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1st April REA—H 787,824,683 686,924,683 39,391 34,346
Issue of new shares by way B EA X ETHRG
of placement (a) - 100,000,000 - 5,000
Issue of new shares upon B TREREETH KM
exercise of share options (b) 35,778,420 900,000 1,789 45
Issue of new shares by IR 75 A BT R R (D
way of rights issue () 397,017,341 - 19,851 -
Issue of new shares upon  BTERREZZTH KM
exercise of warrants (d) 1,844,249 - 92 -
At 31st March W=A=+—-H 1,222,464,693 787,824,683 61,123 39,391

(a) On 15th January, 2007, 100,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company were

being subscribed at a price of HK$2.75 per

share. The proceeds were used to provide

additional general working capital for the

Company. These new shares were issued under

the general mandate granted to the directors

at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28th August, 2006 and rank pari passu

with other shares in issue in all respects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

During the current year, 10,124,210 new shares
and 400,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each in
the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.20
per share and HK$1.30 per share, respectively,
upon exercise of share options granted on 5th
February, 2004. Another 18,236,140 new shares
and 1,360,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each in
the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.42
per share and HK$1.54 per share, respectively,
upon exercise of share options granted on 20th
April, 2004. A further 108,070 new shares and
5,550,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each in the
Company were issued at a price of HK$1.32
per share and HK$1.43 per share, respectively,
upon exercise of share options granted on 28th
September, 2005. The new shares issued rank
pari passu with the existing share in issue in all
respects.

In the last year, 700,000 shares of HK$0.05
each in the Company were issued at a price
of HK$1.54 per share upon exercise of share
options granted on 20th April, 2004. Another
200,000 shares of HK$0.05 each in the
Company was issued at a price of HK$1.43 per
share upon exercise of share options granted on
28th September, 2005. The new shares issued
rank pari passu with the existing shares in issue
in all respects.

On 28th August, 2007, the Company completed
an open offer of one offer share (with
warrants) (the “Rights Shares”) for every two
shares held by members on the register of
members, at an issue price of HK$4.50 per offer
share, resulting in the issue of 397,017,341
shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each for
a total consideration, before expenses of

HK$9,402,000, of HK$1,786,578,000.

e R R
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b) RAFE R-_ZEZENF_A
TRARECERETER B
S BIEEI1.208 7t R &/%1.30
BT ZEBRETARASRE
{B0.05/8 70 2 #910,124,2100% &
400,0008% #7 B 1 ° » Bl & %
1.428 T R EK1.548 T 2 B
BTAR ARG REE0.0S5HE T 2
18,236,1408% %1,360,0008% 1
D o BN RZZEZTREN A
ZHN\BERE 2 ERETER -
E D REER1.328 T & 1.4378
TTZ BEEITEREE0.05E T
2.108,0700% %5,550,000% 37 A%
19 o BT84 2 TRk (0 1 & 77 T B
REBRNE=BERSHEZ -

E2F RZZEZTWFNA =+
BREE CERETER B
BR154B T2 BRETER
A {80.05/% JT 2700,0004% 48 2
ARG - BN RZZEZERFA
AZ+ N NBELZERETE
B BIRER1.438 T 2 BIE3
IR R SR EE0.05% T 2
200,000 Bz fn » B 3 2 3 IR 0
EErHEREROEZERSE
(c) R=ZZFEZE+FNA=Z+NAH"
NN TERKA B AR R & 2
BRFEESMERKRMNRE—K
BERND (ERBRESR) ([HEK
RO 2 ARABE BREES
B 1p 2 3478 B4.50%8 T - &
B 3 17397,017,341 R & I E (&
0.05B L 2 AN RAAIMRG - BRE
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35. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
(CONTINUED)

(©)

(continued)

Warrants with exercise price of HK$6.0 were
issued by way of bonus in the proportion of
three warrants for every ten Rights Shares. Upon
the completion to the open offer, 119,105,202
units of warrants were issued (the “Warrants”).
The Warrants are exercisable within a period
from the date of issue to the third anniversary
of the date of issue of the Warrants (both dates
inclusive).

The fair value of the Warrants at the issue date
was HK$258,838,000 and the Warrants were
recognised as derivative financial instruments.

The gross cash proceeds credited to share
capital, share premium and derivative financial
instruments were amounted to HK$19,851,000,
HK$1,507,889,000 and HK$258,838,000,
respectively. The new shares issued rank pari
passu with the existing shares in issue in all
respects.

During the year, 1,844,249 new shares of
HK$0.05 each in the Company were issued at
a price of HK$6.00 per share upon exercise of
1,844,249 units of Warrants. The subscription
money of approximately HK$11,065,000 has
been received in full upon the exercise. The new
share issued rank pari passu with existing share
in issue in all respects.

As at 31st March, 2008, 117,260,953 units of
Warrants were still outstanding which would,
under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 117,260,953
additional shares of HK$0.05 each of the
Company. Assume the outstanding warrants
were exercised in full and there has been no
change to the initial subscription price, the total
subscription money received will amount to
HK$703,566,000.
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35.

BRARZRER (&)

(©)

(&)

RHREE 2 (TR ER6.087T A
AR BT - AT AR E
RE A% 15 AT HEBE = 15 R AR HERE - 2
2 & T K - 5119,105,202
ME BT 2RRER ([RRE
F]) o  RIEFREITHERE
RREEETRHREF_EABF 2
HE (R2EaREmME) ARI{T{E -

RREERBTHRZAFES
258,838,000/8 7T R EZ R
M ERERERETESRHT
1=

FARAK - RGO EE R
EEeBMMITAEZHESHEXR
IHREED B A19,851,000/%8
JC ~ 1,507,889,000/ T &
258,838,000/%8 JT ° B #1771 %
MRS HHEREEETROA
B EHbf o

FA1,844,2490% = Rk | &
0.05% 7L Z AR R & B 1T {E
1,844,249 R HEF L T &
MeBTL B ETT - RE KA
11,065,000/8 TR/ TERE 2
IRER o FrEs1T 2 IR R &5 |
BB ERNOEZERSES °

R-_EENEF=ZA=+—8"
117,260,85317 52 A% #E & 14 & %
7 BARRIRE 2 EARNERE
EHEEINEETT117,260,9530% &
f&MEE0.058 T 2 AN A B -
BEMABTZRREED 2
HITE - ML RBELEEM
o) BEREFBAESS
703,566,000/ 7T °



#wABEBARERERAZ2

i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RESERVES

THE GROUP
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Capital reserve represented the loans waived by former
minority shareholders of a wholly-owned subsidiary
in the PRC. Pursuant to local regulations, this amount
had been transferred to a non-distributable reserve
of the subsidiary. The capital reserve was released to
consolidated income statement upon the disposal of
the subsidiary during the year.

PRC statutory reserves as at 1st April, 2007 comprised
statutory surplus reserve, enterprise expansion reserve
and statutory public welfare fund which represented
20% of the annual audited net profit after taxation
two PRC subsidiaries of the Company in accordance
with the respective Articles of Association. The
ratios for appropriations among these reserves are
determined at the discretion of the board of directors
of the respective PRC subsidiary. When the balance
of such reserves reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital, no further appropriation is required.
During the year, the statutory public welfare fund of
HK$46,869,000 was cancelled upon resolutions passed
by directors of the subsidiaries and was therefore
transferred to retained profits. Upon the disposal of
a subsidiary during the year, statutory reserves of
HK$18,128,000 in that subsidiary was transferred
to retained profits. Statutory reserves as at 31st
March, 2008 comprise statutory surplus reserve and
enterprise expansion reserve which represented 12%
of the annual audited net profit after taxation of a
PRC subsidiary as approved by the directors of the
subsidiaries.

Equity participants reserve represented the excess of
the fair value of the Convertible Bonds issued at 28th
August, 2007 to all shareholders over the proceeds
received from the issue of Convertible Bonds.

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off
against accumulated losses whilst the enterprise
expansion reserve can be used for expansion of
production facilities or increase in registered capital.
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For the year 31st March, 2008 BZE-ZZN\F=ZA=+—HIFE

36. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 36. f#f{E (&)

THE COMPANY AT
Retained
Share-based Equity Capital profits
Share compensation participants  redemption  Translation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
Rt REZEA % REEH
RAEE HefE ffe REf BERE  (RFER) ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL TAL TERL TAL TAL TAL
At 1st April, 2006 RZET /\¢@ﬂ =] 1,125,948 9,510 - 173 - 60,056 1,195,687
Issue of new shares (Note 35)  E4T3TMR {0 (Hf335) 270,000 - - - - - 270,000
Expenses incurred in B Fﬁﬁé
connection with issue of ZFX
shares (4,235) - - - - - (4,235)
Exercise of share options ety 1,388 (70) - - - - 1318
Lapse of share options BREXN - (1,409) - - - 1,409 -
Profit for the year MF*’\;M - - - - - 142,187 142,187
Final dividend for 2006 ZRERERBRSE - - - = = (27,477) (27,477)
Interim dividend for 2007 “EELERERE = = = = - (51,519) (51,519)
At 31st March, 2007 RZE5+F
=ZR=t-H 1,393,101 8,031 - 173 - 124,656 1,525,961
Exchange differences arisingon ~ RRAERZERRAE
translation of functional EAE L)
currency to presentation EECERER
currency recognised directly
in equity - - - - 90,357 = 90,357
Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - - (977,325) (977,325)
Total recognised income and ENBRAZBAR
expense for the year AX &% = = - - 90,357 (977,325) (886,968)
Issue of new shares (Note 35) BT Mk( (Hi3£35) 1,507,889 - = - - = 1,507,889
Deemed distribution upon issue ~ EE/T AT AR ER
of convertible bonds RIED IR - - (96,794) - = - (96,794)
Expenses incurred in connection ~ EETRABEZFX
with issue of shares (9,402) - - - - - (9,402)
Exercise of share options IlEERE 53,437 (6,488) - - = = 46,949
Exercise of warrants TERRER 16,675 - = - - - 16,675
Recognition of equity settled EANRAEE 2
share-based payments RO BER 2R - 32,267 - - - - 32,267
Lapse of share options BREXN - (50) - - - 50 -
Final dividend for 2007 “ETLERBRE - - - - - (51,612) (51,612)
At 31t March, 2008 RZTENE
=A=t-H 2,961,700 33,760 (96,794) 173 90,357 (904,231) 2,084,965
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or

rewards to participants.

Under the share option scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options as an incentive to
selected participants, selected participants including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company at the price
determined by the Directors of the Company, but shall
not be lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company on the date of adopting the
Scheme. An option may be exercised at any time within
ten years from the date, upon payment of HK$1 on

acceptance.

The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
the offer by the grantee. The vesting and exercisable
period of the share option granted is determinable at
the entire discretion of the Board of Directors but the
exercisable period will not exceed a period of ten years

immediate after acceptance of grant.
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37.

BB E
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. URBRGHER IR (E)
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s TR EEBEFEFNRHEE (ESHN) HFE 2
share options held by employees (other than directors) ARREREZFBEREEFEE 2
and movements in such holdings during the year: &) :
Number of share options
BREHE
Subscription price per share Qutstanding at 22.8.2007
SRAHE H-FBLENAZTZRRAME
Qutstanding Reclassfication Lapsed ~ Exercsed  Outstanding ~ Exercised Lapsed Granted ~ Exercised  Outstanding
Date Before After  Exercisable it during during during it during during Before After during during it
ofgrant ~ adjustment  adjustment period 142006 the year the year the year 14200 theperiod  theperiod  adjustment  adjustment  theperiod  theperiod  31.3.2008
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(K2 (W)
it £ 753 it £ 13 H-BRNE
BA-A BA-R ZAzt-8
RiAE L] Ae figR HRGR FRENAE  EAERN  EAEAR  HAGR  BAEAR  BREAM L3 BEE  BAERY  BREOR HAGR
HKS HKS Note 3) (Note 2 (Note 4)
i #n (KiB) () (b
(Note 1) (Note 2)
() (#)
522004 130 120 5220051422014 1,275,000 (150,000) (625,000) 500,000 = = 500,000 540,350 (204,035) 36315
Z2RMEATA i & it
“E-RECRRR
522004 130 120 52200610422014 1,325,000 (150,000) (625,000) 550,000 = (50,000) 500,000 540,350 (204,039) 36315
Z2EMEATA s e
“2-ME-ARE
2042004 154 142 2042004101942014 6,400,000 (100,000 2,250,000 200000 3,850,000 60,000) - 30000 4095893 (3528070) 567,783
ZREMEMA=TA “RRMEMA-TRE
Z5-MERATAR
289.2005 18 132 7800000 = (350,000) (2000000 7250000 (5,350,000) (100000) 1600000 1729120 (108070 1,621,050
“RRIENACTA
27112007 - 6.56 - - - - - - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
“RRHE-AoTHR
16,800,000 (d00000)  (3,850,000) (400,000) 12,150,000 (5,610,000 (150,000 6,390,000 6905673 10000000 (40442100 12,861,463
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. URDERZAR(E)
Details of share options held by the directors of the R ERFTAMBARRESHEE 2 BE
Company are as follows: BT
Number of share options
EREHE
Subscription price per share Qutstanding at 22.8.2007
SRARE R-SBLENAZTZAMARE
Qutstanding  Reclassification Lapsed ~ Outstanding Exercised Lapsed Granted Exercsed  Outstanding
Date Before Ater  Bxercisable at during during at during during Before After during during at
ofgrant ~ adjustment  adjustment period 142006 the year the year 14200 theperiod  theperiod  adjustment  adjustment  theperiod theperiod 3132008
(Note 1) (Note2)
(F) )]
RoRRAE H-RRLE HoFENE
RA-A BA-A Zhzt-A
RHAE ELE A4 fRE HEGR  ERENAR O EMBAM HROR  BREAR  AMERY ELE ABE  EMERY  MmEfE  MAGR
HKS HKS (Note 3) (Note 2)
#n i () ()
(Note 1) (Note 2)
ki) (Kz0)
522004 130 120 5220051042014 150,000 150,000 (150,000) 150,000 {100,000) - 50,000 54035 - (54,039) -
ZREMECARA ZRRRECfEAE
“R-mEZARA
522004 130 120 5220061042014 150,000 150,000 (150,000) 150,000 - = 150,000 162,105 - (162,105) -
ZRERECAIA “REECARRE
“R-mEZARA
2042004 154 142 2042004101942014 500,000 100,000 (500,000) 100,000 = = 100,000 108070 - (108,070) -
“EEREMA-TA ZREMERA-TRE
“&-ERA
289.2005 14 132 289200510 279015 1,500,000 - {1,500000) S S S S o S
“ETRENACT/A “RRIEARCTIAE
ot S5ty
1,300,000 40000 (2:300000) 400,000 {100,000) 300,000 32420 (324210) -
2008 £ 3}
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For the year 31st March, 2008 BZE-ZZN\F=ZA=+—HIFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Details of share options held by other participants of

the Company are as follows:

Subscription price per share

37.

u&ﬁgﬁﬂZﬁ%ﬂ(%)
ARTRMSEE B2 BREFED

T~

Number of share options

EREHA

Outstanding at 22.8.2007

SRITRE R-ZBLENAZTZRHAGR
Outstanding ~ Exercised Lapsed Outstanding  Exercised Lapsed Exercised Outstanding
Date Before After  Exercisable at during during at during during Before After during at
of grant adjustment  adjustment period 142006  theyear  theyear 142007  theyear theperiod adjustment adjustment theperiod  31.3.2008
(Note 2)
(W)
RZZEAE H-B2tLE R-BENE
BA-A BA-B ZA=1-A
REAE ELE] ELU ST WRTE  FRERR EFABAR  HAGR BRBAR BREAN BEH BB BRBAE  HAGR
HKS HKS (Note 2)
AL AL (W)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(K1) (M)
5.2.2004 130 120 5.22005t04.2.2014 5,400,000 - 5400000 (300,000 - 5100000 5511570 (470,000 761570
“TERECARA “TRRECARAE
Z2-mE-ARA
5.2.2004 130 120 5.2.2005t04.2.2014 6,150,000 - - 6,150,000 - - 6150000 6646305 (4750,0000 1,896,305
“EERE-REA ZZTRE-ARAZ
ZE-ME-ARA
20.4.2004 1.54 142 204.2004 t019.4.2014 15,650,000 (500,000 - 15,150,000 (1,300,000) - 13850000 14,967,695 (14,600,000) 367,695
“EEMEMA-TAH “EEMEMA-TAZ
“E-RERATAR
27200000 (500,000) - 26,700,000 (1,600,000) - 25100000 27125570 (24,100,000) 3,025,570
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The closing prices of the Company’s shares
immediately preceding the date of grant of 5th
February, 2004, 20th April, 2004, 28th September,
2005 and 27th November, 2007 were HK$1.30,
HK$1.48, HK$1.43 and HK$6.56, respectively.

As a result of the open offer issue of the Company on
28th August, 2007, the number of share options and
the exercise prices have been adjusted in accordance
with the requirements of Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules and the supplementary guidance issued by
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 5th
September, 2005.

One of the employees of the Company was appointed
as director of the Company during the year ended
31st March, 2007.

On 27th November, 2007, 10,000,000 share options
with estimated fair values of HK$32,267,000 were
granted to employees at the exercise price of
HK$6.56.

mBABEBARERERAZ2ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

37. UBRGBERZAR(E)
B

1. ARARBROREERE AR -
ME—ARR —ZZME/MH/ =+
B ZZERFAA-TNBR=ZF
Z+EF—A-+EHZBHES 5
A1.307 7T ~ 1487870 1.438 TRk
6.56/8 JT °

2. BiE ETHREIE17.03013) K2 B E
LBERBBERZMERARTNREE
AENARBERZIESIHEE - B
BEE RITEEERR=ZZZLEN
A=+ =B AR BT mIEL A

B o

=

3. BAALTRERBRE-2RLE
A +—RILEEREEEBAR
AEE -

4. R=ZZEZEt+tF+—A=+tA"
10,000,00017 fE &4 (fHEt R FEA
32,267,000/ 7t) B LA1T{F {E6.567%
TETIES -

2008 £ )
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

37.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable

period of the share options begins.

In respect of the share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average share price at the date of
exercise is HK$6.33 (2007: HK$3.33).

These fair values were calculated using The Binomial
model. The inputs into the model for share options
granted to employees on 27th November, 2007 were

as follows:

Share price as at grant date KL BAHZRE
Exercise price 1TIE(E
Expected volatility SR
Remaining life Tl &R 5 55
Risk-free rate i 3 P X
Expected dividend yield T8 HA IR B W
Exercise multiple IS8

Exit rate EBEREX

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
before the grant date for previous three years. The
exercise multiple was to account for the early exercise
behaviour of the share options granted by the

Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in comprising the fair value of share options
are based on Director’s last estimate. The value of
an option varies with different variables of certain

subjective assumptions.

Annual Report 2008

37.

LARR 40 B 7 2 3 3K ()
5B AP B AR 7T (2 BT B SRR A
R o

RERNBETEZBREMS @ RITEH
HZ MEFEHREE633B T (ZTZ
+ 4 :3338B7T) °

NPEDFEFBZEARAGFE -R-F
ZtFE+-—A-ttHAREERHZBE
Bz BAFAZEZNT :

Employees

’E

HK$6.567%8 JT
HK$6.56/8 T
60.60%

10 years
3.27%

1.2%

4.00

10.00%

BE=ZFRBPKEIARRRRERER
A BT 2 SR IREEE © 1T EETY
FRLARE B R AP X H P B A 2 $R A AT
TR -

“HEARAD AERABREZAF
B - ERBREAFERMAZEHR
BREAEREFTZHEAER - BIEE
EREETEBBRRZTRAEEH MK
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ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 38. HEUBHELARKBEERA
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION =
OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the year, the Group acquired certain properties FR - AEBEBBREUREBARK
and its related assets and liabilities through public 2,026,000,0007T (492,067,000,000/8
auction, at a consideration of RMB2,026 million T EBYE=FREESREREERR
(approximately HK$2,067 million) from Xj&/&3s5 /% RARWEE THERERBEEERS
SEHBBR2AF] Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group Company B WENKBERXEZERFTELERR
Limited, an independent third party. The purchase was RAIRKEEBRGHIEEER AR ES
by way of acquisition of the entired equity interests of [RHE 2 FREIT - L RRZEEBAEZ
REBRFEXREABR AT Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star EFRBBEARK-
Investment Company Limited and KEFZHRGHEE
ABRAF Tiangjin Hi-Tech Sun Investment Company
Limited. This transaction has been accounted as a
purchase of assets and liabilities.

HK$’000

FHE T

Net assets acquired: Frik 8 & =58 -
Investment properties "EYE 1,105,290
Properties under development ERPYE 961,230
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERER 35
Trade and other payables FET B 5 BR A K B b FE {5 5/ 18 (35)
Total consideration satisfied by cash BRE UBeXZH 2,066,520
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRITEERRS 35
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For the year 31st March, 2008 #Z_FTN\F=A=+—RHILFE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 26th November, 2007, the Company entered into
an agreement with Golden Result Group Limited, an
independent third party, for the sale of its entire equity
interests in Matsunichi Hi-Tech Limited, Matsunichi
Digital (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited and
Matsunichi technology (Dalian) Company Limited
(the "Disposed Companies”) at a consideration
of HK$6,723,000. The Disposed Companies were
engaged in manufacture and trading of digital
consumer products.

39.

HEMNE QA

RZZBZELF+—AZ+RXAB &R
7] BL 8 37 %5 = 77 Golden Result Group
Limitedt LA X 86,723,000/ 7T i &
"I A =B AR A A - Matsunichi
Digital (Macao Commercial Offshore)
Limited R 12 B B & (K#) BR 2 7
(TEHERR] 2MRET LG - 2
HEARREREREEHUBHEE

[}
an °

Net liabilities disposed of: HEY BEFEEE
Total
KT
HK$'000
FABT
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BWEREE 79,200
Prepaid lease payments TEE & FKIR 3,402
Inventories F&8 5,238
Trade and other receivables & U BR 5% % EL i e Uk R IE 68,067
Tax recoverable Al Y =] Fi 18 178
Pledged bank deposits BHEBIRITE R 801
Bank balances and cash RITEENMRS 11,146
Trade and other payables FEAS BR 3 N E b FE S R A (55,234)
Bank borrowings RITEF (112,863)
(65)
Gain on disposals 0 & W 19,619
Release of translation reserve upon disposal i B B AR BR 1B R (9,226)
Release of capital reserve upon disposal i & B AR BR B AN (3,605)
Total consideration BRAE 6,723
Satisfied by: XA
Cash He 6,723
Net cash outflow arising on disposals: BEEEZRESFR
Cash consideration BeRE 6,723
Bank balances, deposits and cash disposed of Tt EZiRTHETF T kiie (11,146)
(4,423)
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEWEBRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Disposed REBE_ZZNF=ZA=+—HIF
Companies contributed HK$504 million to the Group’s E BEREARDAALREEZ &%
turnover and profit of HK$15 million to the Group’s N 7K 4 £ g F & BA504,000,0007 7T &
profit for the year. & #15,000,00078 7T °
The net cash flows of the Disposed Companies for the EHEARREERNFEZFRERE
year before the disposals were as follows: (N
HK$'000
FAET
Net cash used in operating activities KREEBRESRE (80,473)
Net cash used in investing activities BEFREHRE M (544)
Net cash from financing activities BEEEESM 16,579
(64,438)
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 40. EEEM

At 31st March, 2008, certain borrowings of the Group
were secured by the bank deposits of HK$662,292,000
(2007: HK$799,000). At 31st March, 2007, a factory
building with carrying amount of HK$15,324,000 was
also pledged to a bank to secure the banking facilities
grant to the Group, which was released during the

year.

R-ZENE=ZA=+—0 AEEZ
& T &R A R 1T 17 50662,292,0007% JT
(ZZZ £ : 799,000/ 70) 1EH I -
RZZEZ+tF=A=+—8 " ' KEF
615,324,000/ 7T 2 i 5 7N E M R1T K
A UESRITRE - WA FRBER -

2008 £ )
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 41. RIREFIFE
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BAKTE R FT B R
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABTT
Contributions to mandatory provident &% A& S 5t 2
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) ([aFEeTE]) 3k 393 308
Contributions to PRC state-managed PR RE R
pension schemes IR FHEIHE R 1,899 2,210
Amount charged to consolidated iR e W E R IR 2 K
income statement 2,292 2,518

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of independent trustee. The
Group now only participates in the MPF Scheme for all
employees in Hong Kong which is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the Scheme
at rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable in the future years.
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A& B BB AR B R R KET B 1R B
Atz REREFEE - B ZEER
AEBZEESHRE  WAESTH
RAERRHBUEEAETRE - AKER
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a8 BB SRR R B AT
TEEGEHMNEFHELTREEERR
iffh - BB EERAREZE
EDHRE  YAESHAFAERRH
BUFREARRE -REBRERFTE 2R
Al BEREEBEHHERABMRA
BE L R EIHK - AREEH
s A8l 2 E— R ERREZEIE
HARE 2 15K - R I B OR WA 3R]
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 41. RRBEFREE (F)
(CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions (continued) BRAKTER B E R (F)
The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries RRAERRFBEZMBEBRAR & ERE
in the PRC are members of pension schemes operated B AT BT BUTEECRRSETEIZ
by the Chinese local government. The subsidiaries B - ZEWBRARIBKRRBRZEREZ
are required to contribute a certain percentage of BRAF KAz E—BHLRZEKRES
the relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to HEMME  EABHNZES  c AEEAH
the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only FRAREFFE 2 —FEERIELRE
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement 2K e
benefit scheme is to make the specified contribution.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42. BREHHRH
The Group as lessee AEBEERAEAA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had entered into REER AEBIVATHEBAEE
certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of W% 2 NI RH&E L - NEBEFEZ
rented premises. The future minimum lease payments SHRAMERABAELNREREZ
committed by the Group in respect of the leases fall S ATEREE ¢
due as follows:
THE GROUP
AEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Within one year —F R 5,077 3,299
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EFERF
(BERERMFEEA) 2,626 3,229
7,703 6,528

Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 2 to
3 years. Matsunichi Communications (Hong Kong)
Limited, a company in which Mr. Pan is the ultimate
shareholder and a director, is acting as agent for
signing one of the tenancy agrement in relation to
office on behalf of the Group.

The Company had no significant operating lease
commitments at the balance sheet date.

ERACHEOFERANTME=F -RBE&E
AM(ER)ERABEEERREBR
REZZRR)AERRAKERTET
—OEEREHREIREA -

AABREEB T ETAMERELHAD
HE o

2008 £ )
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43.

44,

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. BEREIE
THE GROUP
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for ERTNERRGE M BHRE
but not provided in the consolidated R ATAIIEE fEH
financial statements in respect of B ERAY
acquisition of:
Property, plant and equipment N Y& - 394
- 394
The Company had no significant capital commitments RRRIREEE B I A 1] 8 KB R
at the balance sheet date. Zo
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44, HARAEE

At 31st March, 2007, the Company provided several
unlimited and limited guarantee to certain banks
in respect of credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries. The limited guarantee amounted to
HK$287,300,000. The aggregated amount utilised
by the subsidiaries at 31st March, 2007 were
HK$768,673,000. Upon the disposal of certain
subsidiaries, the corporate guarantee provided to these

disposed subsidiaries were released.

At 31st March, 2008, the Company provided an
unlimited guarantee and limited guarantee of
HK$194,548,000 to a bank in respect of credit facilities
granted to a subsidiary. The aggregate amounts
utilised by the subsidiary at 31st March, 2008 were
HK$222,967,000.
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RZBEZTLF=A=+—H AR 7l
ETHERARZEERE MRS THRIT
fEH %IEMEH%{% + —18287,300,000
%7‘52#”1% RZBETLF=A=+—

ZENMBAREEAzEBRER
768,673,0005%7‘1 o HEE THEBAR
% MZEELEMRBARREZAT
BERE T B -

RZBEZNF=A=+—H AR 7l
—RE AR ZEERE RS THRT
{E — TR &R + —IH194,548,000
BILZER R_TEENF=ZA=1+—

B ZWBARESACEBERERL
222,967,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed in Notes 16, 24, 28, 29 and 42

above, the Company has issued Convertible Bonds with
aggregate principal value of HK$1,325,607,000 and
220,324,447 Rights Shares to Jade Forest and Mr. Pan
during the year. The interest expenses on Convertible
Bonds that paid to Jade Forest and Mr. Pan during the
year amounted to HK$49,981,892. HK$2,319,812,000
was received from Jade Forest and Mr Pan upon the
issue of Convertible Bonds and Rights Shares during
the year. 73,441,482 warrants had been issued to
Jade Forest and Mr. Pan in conjunction with the Rights
Shares.

e MR

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE—ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

45,

BEALIRS
%iﬁ%%m«m«m&m%&ﬁ%
N RRABRFAGEITACBER

1,325,607,000;% mZﬁHﬁi & EH K
220,324,447 1% £ I% B% 19 TJade Forest
B & & o FEINff Flade Forest )% 5t

# 7 R B X 549,981,892/ 7T © N4
NET AR E S R R - Bk

EJade Forest & %&£ 42,319,812,000/%8
JC ° 73,441,482 B HEE B R A% ]
B 2217 T )ade Forest 2 )& 4 A4 o

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Group REBZE_ET+tF=ZA=+—HILHF

sold goods amounting to HK$348,000 to AE{58 £ & AEB L E R 348,000 T2 E

/8572 7], a company in which Mr. Pan has a beneficial mTHRBEELED AR (RELER
interest. BEmER AT °
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEBABZHH

The remuneration of directors and other members of BENHEMTIEEBEAERERNZHE

key management during the year was as follows: N

2008 2007

—BENF —TRLF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Short-term benefits 72 HitE A 18,727 9,106

Post-employment benefits i H5 12 48 A 12 =

18,739 9,106

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

SEENEMTEEEAE ZME THIEE
AATZRBAEMHES  AFMES

& A e
= E L °

2008 £ )
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46.

47.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
On 10th June, 2008, the Company has entered

into an agreement with Grace Dragon International
Holdings Limited (”Grace Dragon”) to sell the
entire equity interest in a wholly owned subsidiary,
Matsunichi Digital Technology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited, with mainly amount due to a group entity
of HK$109,970,000 for a cash consideration of
RMB 100,069,000 (equivalent to HK$109,075,000). Mr.
Pan, Director of the Company, has beneficial interest in

Grace Dragon.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31st March, 2007 and 2008 are as follows:

Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary

46.

47.

GERRSEE
R-ZZEZENEFENA+H  ANAaEIEE

Bl EEBRAR ([ 5T e
uﬁ%ﬁfﬁUﬁ%mowom%(ﬁ%
109,075,000 7)) HEZ2EMB A
MABEBRE ORI BRARZE
N (EIEEFEHEIEEE%K
109,970,000 7T) « NARIEFE L E
MU ERE Em s ©

TENMBRAFE

RRRZEEMBRARANR-ZTZLFR
—EEN\F=ZA=1t—HZFBWT:

Proportion of equity interests

operation share capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary RaLE YA BRERT/ N Principal activities
WEARER EEME AMEERE FERER DL E:3 3
2008 2007
ZEINE —TEEE
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
= [E3 Bk fik
Ample Field Investments  British Virgins US$10,000 100% 100% = Investment holding
Limited Islands (B.V.I.)/ 10,000 7T and trading of
Hong Kong digital consumer
RERLES products
(ZBEx#S])/ REBRREEHE
&k BEEMm
Best Concord Group B.VI/ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong (E
ERRRHEE/BR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Goldin Properties Group
Limited

Matsunichi Digital (Macao
Commercial Offshore)
Ltd.

Matsunichi Digital
Technology (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.

B BE R (R
BRAF

Matsunichi Digital
Technology Limited

Matsunichi Hi-Tech
Germany GmbH

Place of

incorporation/

registration/

operation

EMIRL/

BB

Hong Kong
A

Macau
R

PRC*
E

Taiwan

N=1
4H

Germany
(e

Paid up issued/
registered
ordinary

share capital
grERs/
dREERE

MOP500,000
500,000 9

RMB99,216,000

AR %99,216,0007C

NT$10,000,000
#4110,000,0007

Eur300,000
300,000t %

e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

47. FEMBLAAFHRE (&)

Proportion of equity interests

held by the Company

ARDH
FERERD L

Principal activities

TEXE

2008 2007

ZBENE
Directly Indirectly Directly
E& [E3 B

100% - =

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

“BELF

Indirectly
k3

- Provision of
administrative service

RRITHRS

100% Trading of digital
consumer products
EEYEREER

= Manufacture and
trading of digital
consumer products
WEREEUE
REEM

= Manufacture and
trading of digital
consumer products
WEREEUE
REEM

- Inactive

AT

2008 £ )
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Matsunichi Hi-Tech
Limited
RERRBRAHF

Matsunichi Information
Technology (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.

A ESRE R
BR AT

Matsunichi (Shenzhen)
R&D Centre Co., Ltd.
B R AR AR ORI

BRRA

Matsunichi Technology
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.
REME (KB ERATF

Shaoguan Manhattan

Enterprise Limited

Annual Report 2008

Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary

operation share capital
LTV arERT/
EEBY dREBERE
Hong Kong HK$100
i 100787
PRC* RMB164,796,974
R AR#164,796,9747C
PRC* RMB9,551,700
R AR 89,551,700
PRC* RMB59,945,220
R AR#59,945,2207
PRC* US$49,950,000
hEx 49,950,000% T

47. FEMBLAFE (&)

Proportion of equity interests

held by the Company
N
FisREBE DI

2008 2007

= Ak
Directly Indirectly Directly
E& [F3 B

- 100% =

100% - 100%

- - 100%

- 100% =

“BELF

Indirectly
k3

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEXE

Trading of digital
consumer products
EEUEREER

Manufacture and
trading of digital
consumer products

WEREEUE
REEM

Manufacture and
trading of digital
consumer products

WEREEUE
REEm

Manufacturing and
trading of digital
consumer products

REREEHE
HEEm

Investment holding

REARK



47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

For the year 31st March, 2008 #HE_ZZTNF=A=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary
operation share capital
Name of subsidiary HRARL/ BRERT/
WEARSR EEMA EMEERE
Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star ~ PRC* RMB10,000,000
Investment Company R EI* AK%10,000,0007
Limited
REERMERE
BRAR
Tianjin Hi-Tech Sun PRC* RMB10,000,000
Investment Company R EI* AK%10,000,0007
Limited
REERGARE
BRAR
* These companies were established in the PRC in the
form of wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
(@) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 31st March, 2008 or at any time during

the year.

(b) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results of the year or formed a
substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

mABEBARERERA22ST

47. FEMBLAAFHRE (&)

Proportion of equity interests

held by the Company
NG Principal activities
FrishER DL TEEH
2008 2007
ZEENE T E
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
J=§:3 B & B% &
- 100% - - Property development
and investment
NEERRRE
- 100% - - Property development
and investment
NEERRRE
* ZENAAINEBERER AT
BX3Z °
(a) RZZEZENF=ZA=1+—H=&F
WA R - &0 8 A B & AT
RIEBE S °
(b) EARFBESFZER L£RYIZE

ARBAZHBRARIREEZER
SEAFEEREERAIEAEERE
ERELEZRR - EFRRT
HEMHBARZHIETESRE
BRILE o

2008 £ )

155



Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B R

Year ended 31st March,
BE=ZA=t—BHLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEENE —ZETEHF ZTER —ZTHFE —ZTTMF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THET THT FHET

RESULTS E4
Turnover %0 4,297,788 3,070,579 2,313,706 1,703,752 613,059
Profit before taxation B F B Al 1,157,962 212,942 219,706 215,111 77,791
Taxation FIA (471,312) (10,765) (4,654) (18,888) (7,653)
Profit for the year FEHE 686,650 202,177 215,052 196,223 70,138

R=BA=+—H

At 31st March,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

—EENF ZTTLHF ZTTRF ZFTTLF ZTTOF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TExT TAET T TABT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Total assets BEHE 8,660,280 3,246,415 2,480,723 1,872,172 781,236
Total liabilities BERRE (4,570,878) (1,450,673) (1,135,276)  (683,550)  (204,658)
Total equity R 4,089,402 1,795,742 1,345,447 1,188,622 576,578

1 56 Annual Report 2008



Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited
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